


Planning Department 

Town of Truro 
24 Town Hall Road 

Truro, MA 02666 
(508) 349-7004

Zoning Board of Appeals 

Meeting Packet – June 25, 2020 

Table of Contents 

2019-008/ZBA Cloverleaf Truro Community Housing 

Memo from Applicant 3 

Revised Landscape Plan 

Revised Site/Septic Plans 

Materials Palette 

NHESP Turtle Protection Plan  

Draft SWPPP 

Public Comment – Steinman 

Submittal 3/12/2020 – Herridge  

23 

24 

29 

32 

40 

87 

90 

Architectural Plans and Building Heights 159 (no changes, included for reference) 

Other Business 

Minutes for Approval 191 





























































 
 

 

 

P.O. Box 236 / 291 Route 6  ·  South Wellfleet MA 02663  ·  508-346-2615  ·  wellfleet@massaudubon.org           

NHESP File No.: 18-37452 

 

Community Housing Resource, Inc  

PO Box 1015  

Provincetown MA 02657 

 

Box Turtle Protection Plan for Cloverleaf Affordable Housing Project, Truro, MA. 

 

Turtle Barrier 

1. Before construction, install temporary turtle barrier around perimeter of the property or limit of work, as 

appropriate.  

2. Barrier will be high-quality 3’ silt fence buried 4-6” deep and backfilled, and will be installed in a way that 

minimizes habitat disturbance, especially to Box Turtle food plants (mainly Lowbush Blueberry). 

3. Fence should be reinforced with hay bales or backer material as appropriate where it is not taut. 

4. At the south end of the property fronting Highland Road, where all work vehicles will access the site, a 

gate for truck access will be included using either silt fence that can be opened, then closed and weighted 

with sand bags or heavy pipe along the bottom, or a plywood gate at least two feet high (see figure 1). 

5. Along the side fronting rt 6, silt fence should bend east at least 50 feet above Highland Rd to keep from 

directing turtles onto the road. 

6. Fence should be inspected once per week during turtle active season (April 1 – October 31) and any holes 

of gaps repaired. 

7. If fence was in place all winter, it will be inspected and repaired in March or early April. 

 

Turtle Surveys 

1. All surveys conducted by a biologist pre-approved by MHNESP and in possession of a scientific collecting 

permit. 

2. Approved biologist will conduct 12 hours of pre-construction turtle sweeps inside the fenced 3.9 acre site, 

spread across 3 non-consecutive visits, during appropriate weather, between May 1 and October 31. 

Searches occur along both sides of silt fence as well as within the fence.  

3. Perimeter fence will be checked for turtles weekly as well as on work days. Work day checks can either be 

conducted by the MNHESP approved Mass Audubon biologist, another trained staff person, or a member 

of the construction crew trained by the approved Wellfleet Bay biologist. 

4. Conduct half-day sweeps of the area inside the fence twice in June, September, and October, and once in 

July. August sweep optional.  

5. All turtles found will be relocated to appropriate habitat well outside the project area where chance of 

entering roads is minimal, such as the large areas of National Seashore forest to the north and east. Rare 

species encounters will be submitted to MNHESP. 

6. Reports will be submitted after the first 12 hours of pre-construction searches and after the turtle active 

season if required by MNHESP. 

7. Any questions can be submitted to project manager Mark Faherty, Science Coordinator, Mass Audubon 

Wellfleet Bay Sanctuary, mfaherty@massaudubon.org. 



 
 

 

 

P.O. Box 236 / 291 Route 6  ·  South Wellfleet MA 02663  ·  508-346-2615  ·  wellfleet@massaudubon.org           

 
 

 
Figure 1. Safe Harbor proposal for plywood access gate for vehicles. 



1

Ted Malone

From: Mark Faherty <mfaherty@massaudubon.org>

Sent: Wednesday, May 27, 2020 5:33 PM

To: Ted Malone; gordon peabody; Jaimie Safe Harbor; Bob Prescott

Subject: Fwd: Box Turtle protection plan NHESP File No.: 18-37452

Attachments: Box Turtle Protection Plan Truro Cloverleaf.docx; ATT00001.htm

 

 

 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Marold, Misty-Anne (FWE)" <misty-anne.marold@state.ma.us> 

Date: May 27, 2020 at 2:24:41 PM EDT 

To: Mark Faherty <mfaherty@massaudubon.org>, Bob Prescott <rprescott@massaudubon.org>, "Jones, 

Michael T (FWE)" <michael.t.jones@state.ma.us>, "Cheeseman, Melany (FWE)" 

<melany.cheeseman@state.ma.us>, "Holt, Emily (FWE)" <emily.holt@state.ma.us> 

Subject: Re:  Box Turtle protection plan NHESP File No.: 18-37452 

  

RE: Truro, NHESP 18-37452, TECA protection plan 

 

All, 

 

The Division approves the Box Turtle Protection plan entitled 'Box Turtle Protection Plan for 

Cloverleaf Affordable Housing Project, Truro, MA.' from MassAudubon received via email on 

5/27/2020.  I note that if the ground beneath the gate is not level and parallel the bottom of 

the plywood,  you may need to add a 'sweep' to the bottom of the gate to fill any gaps.  

 

Best, Misty-Anne 

 

 

Important: Our offices are currently closed and all non-essential state employees are working remotely, which 

includes Environmental Review staff. Governor Baker also suspended state permitting deadlines and response 

periods with COVID-19 Order No. 17 (March 26, 2020). We will continue to process applications and respond to 

inquiries and correspondence as quickly as possible, although timelines may be delayed. Thank you for your 

patience. Please visit our website (www.mass.gov/nhesp) for updates. 

 



2

Misty-Anne R. Marold, Senior Endangered Species Review Biologist 

Massachusetts Division of Fisheries & Wildlife 

Natural Heritage Endangered Species Program 

1 North Drive, Rabbit Hill Road 

Westborough, MA 01581 

Direct: 508-389-6356 | Fax: 508-389-7891 

 
From: Mark Faherty <mfaherty@massaudubon.org> 

Sent: Wednesday, May 27, 2020 1:41 PM 

To: Marold, Misty-Anne (FWE); Bob Prescott; Jones, Michael T (FWE); Cheeseman, Melany (FWE); Holt, 

Emily (FWE) 

Subject: RE: Box Turtle protection plan NHESP File No.: 18-37452  

  

 

Here is an updated version with a figure of a plywood access gate supplied by Safe Harbors. 

Thanks,  

  

Mark 

  

From: Mark Faherty  

Sent: Tuesday, May 26, 2020 4:13 PM 

To: Marold, Misty-Anne (FWE) <misty-anne.marold@state.ma.us>; Bob Prescott 

<rprescott@massaudubon.org>; Jones, Michael T (FWE) <michael.t.jones@state.ma.us>; Cheeseman, 

Melany (FWE) <melany.cheeseman@state.ma.us>; Holt, Emily (FWE) <emily.holt@state.ma.us> 

Subject: RE: Box Turtle protection plan NHESP File No.: 18-37452 

  

Hi Misty,  

  

Item #5 included one option I discussed – the silt fence gate that be closed and weighted along the 

bottom – I’m not sure if that one works for you guys. I combined that option and the plywood option 

under item 4.  

Thanks, 

  

Mark 

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail 
system.  Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is 
safe.  



3

  

From: Marold, Misty-Anne (FWE) <misty-anne.marold@state.ma.us>  

Sent: Tuesday, May 26, 2020 4:00 PM 

To: Bob Prescott <rprescott@massaudubon.org>; Mark Faherty <mfaherty@massaudubon.org>; Jones, 

Michael T (FWE) <michael.t.jones@state.ma.us>; Cheeseman, Melany (FWE) 

<melany.cheeseman@state.ma.us>; Holt, Emily (FWE) <emily.holt@state.ma.us> 

Subject: Re: Box Turtle protection plan NHESP File No.: 18-37452 

  

All, 

  

If you can revise the Protocol to describe something along the lines we've emailed about here, 

we can approve this. I'll look through my email to see if I can find an example photo or detail in 

the meantime.  

  

Misty-Anne 

  

  

Important: Our offices are currently closed and all non-essential state employees are working 

remotely, which includes Environmental Review staff. Governor Baker also suspended state permitting 

deadlines and response periods with COVID-19 Order No. 17 (March 26, 2020). We will continue to 

process applications and respond to inquiries and correspondence as quickly as possible, although 

timelines may be delayed. Thank you for your patience. Please visit our website (www.mass.gov/nhesp) 

for updates. 

  

Misty-Anne R. Marold, Senior Endangered Species Review Biologist 

Massachusetts Division of Fisheries & Wildlife 

Natural Heritage Endangered Species Program 

1 North Drive, Rabbit Hill Road 

Westborough, MA 01581 

Direct: 508-389-6356 | Fax: 508-389-7891 

 

From: Bob Prescott <rprescott@massaudubon.org> 

Sent: Friday, May 22, 2020 11:52 AM 

To: Mark Faherty; Marold, Misty-Anne (FWE); Jones, Michael T (FWE); Cheeseman, Melany (FWE); Holt, 

Emily (FWE) 

Subject: RE: Box Turtle protection plan NHESP File No.: 18-37452  



4

  

  

Hi Misty-Anne, 

  

I think that’s what was used at the Eastham Water Tower construction site and it held up very well. It 

was a smaller site and we didn’t find any box turtles so we don’t know of any box turtles got in or out. 

  

I could see a box turtle scaling a hay bale, the fencing maybe more of a challenge. 

  

Bob 

  

From: Mark Faherty  

Sent: Friday, May 22, 2020 11:29 AM 

To: Marold, Misty-Anne (FWE) <misty-anne.marold@state.ma.us>; Jones, Michael T (FWE) 

<michael.t.jones@state.ma.us>; Cheeseman, Melany (FWE) <melany.cheeseman@state.ma.us>; Holt, 

Emily (FWE) <emily.holt@state.ma.us> 

Cc: Bob Prescott <rprescott@massaudubon.org> 

Subject: RE: Box Turtle protection plan NHESP File No.: 18-37452 

  

Hi Misty-Anne,  

  

We can modify that however you like. I saw one version in an approved TPP where they just used the 

same silt fence, created a gap as necessary to get vehicles in, then closed the gap at end of day and 

weighted the bottom of the fencing with sand bags. Safe Harbors said they have done that same 

method but with heavy pipe to weight the bottom of the silt fence “gate”. We can also use plywood if 

you like. Do you have an example photo? I kbow Safe Harbors could do whatever you want. 

Thanks,  

  

Mark 

  

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail 
system.  Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is 
safe.  



5

From: Marold, Misty-Anne (FWE) <misty-anne.marold@state.ma.us>  

Sent: Thursday, May 21, 2020 3:32 PM 

To: Mark Faherty <mfaherty@massaudubon.org>; Jones, Michael T (FWE) 

<michael.t.jones@state.ma.us>; Cheeseman, Melany (FWE) <melany.cheeseman@state.ma.us>; Holt, 

Emily (FWE) <emily.holt@state.ma.us> 

Cc: Bob Prescott <rprescott@massaudubon.org> 

Subject: Re: Box Turtle protection plan NHESP File No.: 18-37452 

  

Mark, 

  

Can you provide a better description of #4? Box turtles can climb hay bales pretty well. Usually, 

we ask for more rigid system like the using plywood or something taller and more vertical with 

weighting or bales on the work-side.  

  

Misty-Anne 

  

Important: Our offices are currently closed and all non-essential state employees are working 

remotely, which includes Environmental Review staff. Governor Baker also suspended state permitting 

deadlines and response periods with COVID-19 Order No. 17 (March 26, 2020). We will continue to 

process applications and respond to inquiries and correspondence as quickly as possible, although 

timelines may be delayed. Thank you for your patience. Please visit our website (www.mass.gov/nhesp) 

for updates. 

  

Misty-Anne R. Marold, Senior Endangered Species Review Biologist 

Massachusetts Division of Fisheries & Wildlife 

Natural Heritage Endangered Species Program 

1 North Drive, Rabbit Hill Road 

Westborough, MA 01581 

Direct: 508-389-6356 | Fax: 508-389-7891 

 

From: Mark Faherty <mfaherty@massaudubon.org> 

Sent: Friday, May 15, 2020 5:34 PM 

To: Marold, Misty-Anne (FWE); Jones, Michael T (FWE); Cheeseman, Melany (FWE); Holt, Emily (FWE) 

Cc: Bob Prescott 

Subject: Box Turtle protection plan NHESP File No.: 18-37452  

  



6

  

Hi Folks,  

  

Please see the proposed turtle protection plan for the Truro Cloverleaf affordable housing 

project.  Happy to amend as necessary.  

Thanks, 

  

Mark 

  

********************************************************************* 

Mark Faherty 

Science Coordinator 

Mass Audubon/Wellfleet Bay Wildlife Sanctuary 

PO Box 236, State Highway Route 6 

South Wellfleet, MA 02663 

508-349-2615 x-6110 fax: 508-349-2632 

email: mfaherty@massaudubon.org 

website: www.massaudubon.org/wellfleetbay 

http://www.facebook.com/MassAudubonWellfleetBay 

Protecting the Nature of Massachusetts 

  

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail 
system.  Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is 
safe.  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT  COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE 
HIGHLAND ROAD, TRURO, MA  JMO-8446A 

i 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

 

For Construction Activities At: 

CLOVERLEAF PROJECT 

22 HIGHLAND ROAD  

TRURO, MA  

 

SWPPP Prepared For: 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE, INC. 

Mr. Ted Malone 

P.O. Box 1015 

Provincetown, MA 02657 

 

SWPPP Prepared By: 

J.M. O’Reilly & Associates, Inc. 

1573 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 

Phone #: 508-896-6601 

Fax #: 508-896-6602 

Email: joreilly@jmoreillyassoc.com 

 

SWPPP Preparation Date: 

MONTH XX, 20XX 

 

Estimated Project Dates: 
MONTH XX, 20XX 

 

Project Start Date:  Unknown  

Project Completion Date: Unknown 

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT  COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE 
HIGHLAND ROAD, TRURO, MA  JMO-8446A 

ii 

Contents 

 

SECTION 1: CONTACT INFORMATION/RESPONSIBLE PARTIES .................................................................. 1 
1.1 Operator(s) / Subcontractor(s) ................................................................................................. 1 

1.2 Stormwater Team ....................................................................................................................... 2 

SECTION 2: SITE EVALUATION, ASSESSMENT, AND PLANNING ................................................................ 3 
2.1 Project/Site Information ............................................................................................................. 3 
2.2 Discharge Information ............................................................................................................... 3 

2.3 Nature of the Construction Activity .......................................................................................... 4 
2.4 Sequence and Estimated Dates of Construction Activities .................................................. 5 
2.5 Allowable Non-Stormwater Discharges ................................................................................... 6 
2.6 Site Maps ..................................................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 3: DOCUMENTATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS...................... 6 
3.1 Endangered Species Protection ............................................................................................... 6 
3.2 Historic Preservation ................................................................................................................... 8 
3.3 Safe Drinking Water Act Underground Injection Control Requirements ............................. 9 

SECTION 4: EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS ................................................................................... 12 
4.1 Natural Buffers or Equivalent Sediment Controls .................................................................. 12 
4.2 Perimeter Controls .................................................................................................................... 12 
4.3 Sediment Track-Out.................................................................................................................. 13 
4.4 Stockpiled Sediment or Soil ..................................................................................................... 13 

4.5 Minimize Dust ............................................................................................................................. 13 
4.6 Minimize the Disturbance of Steep Slopes ............................................................................ 14 
4.7 Topsoil......................................................................................................................................... 14 

4.8 Soil Compaction ....................................................................................................................... 14 
4.9 Storm Drain Inlets ...................................................................................................................... 15 
4.10 Constructed Stormwater Conveyance Channels ............................................................... 15 
4.11 Sediment Basins ........................................................................................................................ 15 

4.12 Chemical Treatment ................................................................................................................ 15 
4.13 Dewatering Practices .............................................................................................................. 16 
4.14 Other Stormwater Controls ...................................................................................................... 16 

4.15 Site Stabilization ........................................................................................................................ 16 
4.16 Long-term Maintenance of Steep Sloped Areas ................................................................. 17 

SECTION 5: POLLUTION PREVENTION STANDARDS .................................................................................. 17 
5.1   Potential Sources of Pollution .................................................................................................. 17 
5.2 Spill Prevention and Response ................................................................................................ 17 

5.3 Fueling and Maintenance of Equipment or Vehicles .......................................................... 18 
5.4 Washing of Equipment and Vehicles ..................................................................................... 19 
5.5 Storage, Handling, and Disposal of Construction Products, Materials, and Wastes ........ 19 

5.6 Washing of Applicators and Containers used for Paint, Concrete or Other Materials ... 21 
5.7 Fertilizers ..................................................................................................................................... 22 
5.8 Other Pollution Prevention Practices ...................................................................................... 23 

SECTION 6: INSPECTION AND CORRECTIVE ACTION.............................................................................. 24 
6.1 Inspection Personnel and Procedures ................................................................................... 24 

6.2 Corrective Action ..................................................................................................................... 28 
6.3 Delegation of Authority ........................................................................................................... 29 

SECTION 7: TRAINING ................................................................................................................................ 30 

SECTION 8: CERTIFICATION AND NOTIFICATION .................................................................................... 32 

SWPPP APPENDICES ................................................................................................................................... 32 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

1 

SECTION 1: CONTACT INFORMATION/RESPONSIBLE PARTIES 

1.1 Operator(s) / Subcontractor(s) 

Operator(s): 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  

Ted Malone 

P.O. Box 1015 

Provincetown, MA 02657 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subcontractor(s): 

Engineer/Surveyor  

John O’Reilly 

 J.M. O'Reilly & Associates, Inc 

1573 Main Street 2nd Floor / P.O. Box 1773 

Brewster, MA 02631 

508-896-6601 

508-896-6602 fax 

joreilly@jmoreillyassoc.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Emergency 24-Hour Contact: 

 

T.B.D. 

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

2 

 

 
 

 

 

 

1.2 Stormwater Team 

 

 

 

Construction Site Operator: TBD 

 

TBD 

 

OPERATOR will be responsible for implementing the SWPPP: overseeing installation of any structural Stormwater 

controls, supervising and implementing good housekeeping programs such as site cleanup and disposal of trash 

and debris, hazardous material management and disposal, vehicle and equipment maintenance, implementing 

BMPs, overseeing any corrective actions needed. Also responsible for educating all subcontractors on applicable 

elements of the SWPPP. 

 

John O’Reilly, Civil Engineer & Land Surveyor  

J.M. O’REILLY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

1573 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 

508-896-6601 

 

E-Mail: joreilly@jmoreillyassoc.com 

 

 J.M. O’REILLY & ASSOCIATES, INC. will be responsible for developing the SWPPP and documenting any changes 

to the SWPPP 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

3 

SECTION 2: SITE EVALUATION, ASSESSMENT, AND PLANNING 

 

2.1 Project/Site Information 

Project Name and Address 

Project/Site Name: CLOVERLEAF PROJECT 

Project Street/Location: 22 Highland Road 

City: Truro   

State: MA 

ZIP Code: 02666 

County or Similar Subdivision: Barnstable County 

 

Project Latitude/Longitude 

(Use one of three possible formats, and specify method) 

Latitude: Longitude: 

1. xx º xx ' xx'' N (degrees, minutes, seconds) 1. xx º xx ' xx'' W (degrees, minutes, 

seconds) 

2. _ _ º _ _ . _ _' N (degrees, minutes, decimal) 2. _ _ º _ _ . _ _' W (degrees, minutes, 

decimal) 

3. _ _ . _ _ _ _ º N (decimal) 3. _ _ . _ _ _ _ º W (decimal) 

Method for determining latitude/longitude:  

 USGS topographic map (specify scale:                        )  EPA Web site  GPS 

 Other (please specify): Google Earth 

  

 

Horizontal Reference Datum:  

 NAD 27       NAD 83 or WGS 84       Unknown 

 

If you used a U.S.G.S topographic map, what was the scale?  ____________________________
  

 

Additional Project Information  

Is the project/site located on Indian country lands, or located on a property of religious or 
cultural significance to an Indian tribe?   Yes       No 
 

2.2 Discharge Information 

Does your project/site discharge stormwater into a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System 
(MS4)?   Yes       No 

 

Are there any surface waters that are located within 50 feet of your construction 

disturbances?  

 Yes       No 

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

4 

 

Table 1 – Names of Receiving Waters 

 
The site will drain into the ground via infiltration. Groundwater flow direction of the project area is due 

west – southwest towards Cape Cod Bay, per the Cape Cod Commission Groundwater Flow Maps. 
 

 
 

Table 2 – Impaired Waters / TMDLs 

 
The TMDL for the Cape Cod Bay.  As of this date, no TMDL’s for the Cape Cod Bay have been set 
 

Describe the method(s) you used to determine whether or not your project/site discharges to an 
impaired water:  
 

The above information was taken from The Cape Cod Watershed, August 2009, as prepared by ENSR 
International 
 

2.3 Nature of the Construction Activity  

General Description of Project 

 

This project will consist of clearing land, constructing a roadway, installing utilities and the 
construction of residential housing units.  The housing units will include duplex dwellings, a 15 unit 

apartment building and a triplex dwelling. 

 

Size of Construction Project 

The Construction Site is 3.91 Acres and approximately 82.5% of the lot will be disturbed at one 

time for the road installation, utilities and the home construction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.4 Sequence and Estimated Dates of Construction Activities 

THE TIME LINE FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES HAS NOT BEEN DETERMINED AT THE TIME OF THIS REPORT  

Estimated timeline of activity Construction activity and BMP descriptions 
 

Before any site grading activities begin  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

5 

 

1. Install Erosion control Silt Fence (See Section 4.1 & 4.2) 
2. Comply with the Natural Heritage – Endangered Species Program’s requirements for the site control.  

NO SITE DISTURBANCE IS ALLOWED PRIOR TO COMPLIANCE WITH THE NHESP PROTOCOL. 
2. Construct stabilized construction exits (Section 4.3) 

 

Site grading  
1. Begin site clearing and grubbing operations 
2. Begin overall site grading and topsoil stripping 

3. Establish topsoil stockpile (Section 4.4) 
4. Implement stabilization procedures (Section 4.15) 
 

Infrastructure – Utilities  
1. Trenching and installation of various utilities (water, electric, etc.) 
2. Road Installation 
 

Infrastructure – Foundations  
1. Construct temporary concrete washout area (Section 5.6.1) 
2. Begin construction of building foundation and capping 
3. Remove temporary concrete washout area (Section 5.6.1) 

 

Site stabilization  
1. Remove all temporary control BMPs and stabilize any areas disturbed by their removal with erosion 
controls 

2. Prepare final for seeding and landscaping (Section 4.8 & 4.15) 
3. Monitor stabilized areas until final stabilization is reached 

2.5 Allowable Non-Stormwater Discharges 

List of Allowable Non-Stormwater Discharges Present at the Site 

 

Type of Allowable Non-Stormwater Discharge Likely to be Present at 

Your Site? 

Discharges from emergency fire-fighting activities  YES    NO 

Fire hydrant flushings  YES    NO 

Landscape irrigation  YES    NO 

Waters used to wash vehicles and equipment  YES    NO 

Water used to control dust  YES    NO 

Potable water including uncontaminated water line flushings  YES    NO 

Routine external building wash down  YES    NO 

Pavement wash waters  YES    NO 

Uncontaminated air conditioning or compressor condensate  YES    NO 

Uncontaminated, non-turbid discharges of ground water or spring water  YES    NO 

Foundation or footing drains  YES    NO 

Construction dewatering water  YES    NO 

 
Appropriate BMP’s shall be used to minimize the discharge of pollutants. Such control measures will be 

strictly followed to ensure any impacts from non stormwater discharges are reduced or eliminated. 

Appropriate BMPs are:  N/A 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

6 

2.6 Site Maps 

See Appendix A 

SECTION 3: DOCUMENTATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 

3.1 Endangered Species Protection 

Eligibility Criterion 

Under which criterion listed in Appendix D are you eligible for coverage under this permit?  

 A   B                       C                               D                        E 

 

For reference purposes, the eligibility criteria listed in Appendix D  are as follows: 

 

Criterion A. No federally-listed threatened or endangered species or their designated critical 
habitat(s) are likely to occur in your site’s “action area” as defined in Appendix A of this 
permit.  

Criterion B. The construction site’s discharges and discharge-related activities were already 
addressed in another operator’s valid certification of eligibility for your action area 
under eligibility Criterion A, C, D, E, or F and there is no reason to believe that federally-

listed species or federally-designated critical habitat not considered in the prior 
certification may be present or located in the “action area”.  To certify your eligibility 
under this Criterion, there must be no lapse of NPDES permit coverage in the other 

operator’s certification.  By certifying eligibility under this Criterion, you agree to comply 
with any effluent limitations or conditions upon which the other operator's certification 
was based.  You must include in your NOI the tracking number from the other operator’s 

notification of authorization under this permit. If your certification is based on another 
operator’s certification under Criterion C, you must provide EPA with the relevant 
supporting information required of existing dischargers in Criterion C in your NOI form. 

Criterion C. Federally-listed threatened or endangered species or their designated critical habitat(s) 
are likely to occur in or near your site’s “action area,” and your site’s discharges and 
discharge-related activities are not likely to adversely affect listed threatened or 

endangered species or critical habitat.  This determination may include consideration of 
any stormwater controls and/or management practices you will adopt to ensure that 
your discharges and discharge-related activities are not likely to adversely affect listed 

species and critical habitat.  To make this certification, you must include the following in 
your NOI: 1) any federally listed species and/or designated habitat located in your 

“action area”; and 2) the distance between your site and the listed species or 
designated critical habitat (in miles).  You must also include a copy of your site map with 
your NOI. 

Criterion D. Coordination between you and the Services has been concluded.  The coordination 

must have addressed the effects of your site’s discharges and discharge-related 
activities on federally-listed threatened or endangered species and federally-
designated critical habitat, and must have resulted in a written concurrence from the 

relevant Service(s) that your site’s discharges and discharge-related activities are not 
likely to adversely affect listed species or critical habitat.  You must include copies of the 

correspondence between yourself and the Services in your SWPPP and your NOI. 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

7 

Criterion E. Consultation between a Federal Agency and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and/or 

the National Marine Fisheries Service under section 7 of the ESA has been concluded.  
The consultation must have addressed the effects of the construction site’s discharges 

and discharge-related activities on federally-listed threatened or endangered species 
and federally-designated critical habitat.  The result of this consultation must be either: 

i.  a biological opinion that concludes that the action in question (taking into account 
the effects of your site’s discharges and discharge-related activities) is not likely to 

jeopardize the continued existence of listed species, nor the destruction or adverse 
modification of critical habitat; or 

ii.  written concurrence from the applicable Service(s) with a finding that the site’s 

discharges and discharge-related activities are not likely to adversely affect 
federally-listed species or federally-designated habitat. 

 

You must include copies of the correspondence between yourself and the Services in 
your SWPPP and your NOI. 

Criterion F. Your construction activities are authorized through the issuance of a permit under 

section 10 of the ESA, and this authorization addresses the effects of the site’s discharges 
and discharge-related activities on federally-listed species and federally-designated 
critical habitat.  You must include copies of the correspondence between yourself and 

the Services in your SWPPP and your NOI. 

Supporting Documentation  

Provide documentation for the applicable eligibility criterion you select in Appendix D, as 

follows: 

  

Attached is the response letter from the Natural Heritage Program.  See Appendix  

3.2 Historic Preservation 

Appendix E, Step 1 

Do you plan on installing any of the following stormwater controls at your site?  Check all that 

apply below, and proceed to Appendix E, Step 2.   

 

  Dike 

  Berm 

  Catch Basin 

  Pond 

  Stormwater Conveyance Channel (e.g., ditch, trench, perimeter drain, swale, etc.) 

  Culvert 

  Other type of ground-disturbing stormwater control:  

 

Appendix E, Step 2 

If you answered yes in Step 1, have prior surveys or evaluations conducted on the site already 
determined that historic properties do not exist, or that prior disturbances at the site have 

precluded the existence of historic properties?   YES    NO  

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

8 

 Soil testing on abutting properties did not reveal the existence of Historic Properties. 

 Historic records research found the area was open meadow, vacant of any building 

and disturbed as part of the Route 6 expansions in the 1960’s. 

 
 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

9 

3.3 Safe Drinking Water Act Underground Injection Control Requirements 

 

Do you plan to install any of the following controls?  Check all that apply below. 

 

  Infiltration trenches (if stormwater is directed to any bored, drilled, driven shaft or dug 
hole that is deeper than its widest surface dimension, or has a subsurface fluid 

distribution system) 

 

  Commercially manufactured pre-cast or pre-built proprietary subsurface detention 

vaults, chambers, or other devices designed to capture and infiltrate stormwater flow 

 

  Drywells, seepage pits, or improved sinkholes (if stormwater is directed to any bored, 
drilled, driven shaft or dug hole that is deeper than its widest surface dimension, or has 

a subsurface fluid distribution system) 

 

Please see below cut and paste email conversation with Local State Agency 

 

Hi Keith, 

 

For any subsurface stormwater infiltration structures (e.g. leaching catch basins, infiltration chambers, 

drainfields, infiltration trenches that have been backfilled with greater than 18 inches of permeable fill material, 

etc.), an Underground Injection Control (UIC) registration application submitted to MassDEP is required per 

MassDEP’s UIC regulations, 310 CMR 27.00.  The only exemption is for parcels of land that are only used for one, 

single unit residential dwelling with no additional non-residential activities.  If the stormwater conveyance 

system from a single unit housing development discharges to a subsurface structure on a parcel that receives 

discharge from multiple parcels, the submittal of the UIC registration application is required. 

 

This is the generic information that I’ve put together regarding Underground Injection Control (UIC) regulations 

and UIC Registration application forms for stormwater wells: 

 

All information regarding on-line (eDEP) or paper form UIC registration applications may be obtained at the 

following web page under the category “Applications & Forms”: 

http://www.mass.gov/eea/agencies/massdep/water/drinking/underground-injection-control.html   

 

There is one eDEP UIC Registration form that applies to all UIC well types.  If filing a paper form, there is a specific 

UIC form for the registration of stormwater wells (BRP WS 06 UIC Registration – Stormwater Wells) and a UIC 

Instructions (see CGP Part 7.2.14.3): 

― If you will use any of the identified controls in this section, include documentation of 
contact between you and the applicable state agency or EPA Regional Office 

responsible for implementing the requirements for underground injection wells in the 
Safe Drinking Water Act and EPA’s implementing regulations at 40 CFR Parts 144-147.  

― For state UIC program contacts, refer to the following EPA website: 

http://water.epa.gov/type/groundwater/uic/whereyoulive.cfm.  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

10 

Class V Well Stormwater Technical Compliance Form that must also be completed and submitted with all BRP WS 

06 UIC Registration – Stormwater Wells applications.  Unfortunately, the stormwater technical compliance form 

is not currently available through eDEP but an applicant may still file for the UIC Registration for a stormwater 

well through eDEP and either upload the completed non-exposure form to the eDEP application or mail or email 

it in separately.   

 

An applicant must determine whether any of the activities occurring within the contributing drainage areas to 

the well(s) classify the stormwater well as having one or more Land Uses with Higher Potential Pollutant Loads 

(LUHPPL).  Please note that LUHPPL activities or industries do not necessarily make the stormwater well a well 

with one or more LUHPPL activity.  There are instances where the drainage area for the LUHPPL activity is not in 

the contributing drainage area to the UIC well(s) or does not have the potential to contaminate the well.   In 

these instances the stormwater well is considered to not have any LUHPPL activities for the purpose of 

registering the UIC well(s) with the MassDEP UIC program. 

 

PDF version of stormwater UIC registration form and instructions (also available as MS Word documents 

navigating from the main web page): 

http://www.mass.gov/eea/docs/dep/water/approvals/year-thru-alpha/t-thru-v/uicstorm.pdf   

 

PDF version of UIC stormwater technical compliance form (also available as MS Word documents): 

http://www.mass.gov/eea/docs/dep/water/approvals/year-thru-alpha/m-thru-s/stormexp.pdf  

 

In addition to the stormwater technical compliance form MassDEP requires the submittal of a scaled site plan 

showing the UIC well locations and a cross sectional schematic showing the UIC well construction details 

including width and depth dimensions.   

 

Exemptions:  

Single family residential use only properties are exempt from filing for UIC Registration. 

2 to 4 unit residential use only properties require BRP WS 06 UIC Registration – Stormwater Wells application 

but don’t require the UIC Class V Well Stormwater Technical Compliance Form and Certification Statement. 

 

The application fee associated with the BRP WS06 form for stormwater wells is $110 if there are not LUHPPL 

activities and $585 if there are one or more LUHPPL activities.  If filing by paper as opposed to eDEP on-line filing, 

you must obtain the one page transmittal form and a unique transmittal number at the following MassDEP web 

page: http://www.mass.gov/eea/agencies/massdep/service/approvals/transmittal-form-for-payment.html  

  

Important note regarding payment: Only the one page transmittal form with the $110 or $585 check should be 

sent to the PO Box address shown on the payment transmittal form.  Do not send the complete application 

package to the PO Box as all materials other than the one page transmittal form and check will be discarded.  A 

copy of the transmittal form should be sent with the BRP WS06 application package to the following address: 

  

MassDEP UIC Program 

1 Winter Street, 5th Floor 

Boston, MA 02108  

 

Joe Cerutti  

UIC Program Coordinator  

MassDEP  

1 Winter Street, 5th Floor  

Boston, MA 02108  

617 292-5859  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

11 

fax 617 292-5696 (Note, if faxing, please notify by email or phone) 

 

 

From: Keith Fernandes [mailto:kfernandes@jmoreillyassoc.com]  

Sent: Wednesday, February 03, 2016 7:39 AM 

To: Cerutti, Joseph (DEP) 

Subject: NPDES SWPPP Question 

 

We are currently developing a SWPP for a new subdivision project.  We will be installing deep sump catch basins 

and subsurface infiltration structures in order to handle stormwater run-off.  All of this has been designed in 

accordance with the Massachusetts Stormwater Handbook and meets best management practices. 

 

Section 3.3. of the SWPPP requires that we communicate with the applicable state agency if any controls, such as 

those referenced above, are installed. 

 

This is what lead me to your email.  Not sure what other steps need to take place but please let me know if you 

need anything else. 

 

Thanks, 

Keith E. Fernandes, PE 

Civil Engineer 

  

J.M. O'Reilly & Associates, Inc 

1573 Main Street 2nd Floor / P.O. Box 1773 

Brewster, MA 02631 

508-896-6601 

508-896-6602 fax 

http://www.jmoreillyassoc.com 

  

 

Confidentiality Notice: 

This electronic mail message and any attached files contain information intended for the exclusive use of the 

individual or entity to whom it was addressed and may contain information that is proprietary, privileged, 

confidential and/or exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  If you are not the intended recipient, you are 

hereby notified that any viewing, copying, disclosure or distribution of this information may be subject to legal 

restriction or sanction.  Please notify the sender, by electronic mail or telephone, of any unintended recipients and 

delete the original message without making any copies 

  

 

Prior to any stormwater being discharged into the proposed stormwater systems the above required permits will 

be applied for and obtained. 

 
 

SECTION 4: EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS 

4.1 Natural Buffers or Equivalent Sediment Controls 

Buffer Compliance Alternatives 

Are there any surface waters within 50 feet of your project’s earth disturbances?   YES    NO 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

12 

4.2 Perimeter Controls 

General 
 A Silt Fence and a 9” diameter straw waddle shall be installed along the limit of work line as shown 

on the site plans prepared by J.M. O’REILLY & ASSOCIATES, INC.  Any existing catch basins rims 
shall have filter fabric installed under the rim.  Filter fabric shall be installed within the catch basin 

grates along Highland Road so as to protect the existing drainage system.   
 Filter fabric shall be cleaned of any sediment as needed.  
 Sediment must be removed from the area of the silt fence/straw waddle if it has accumulated to 

½ of the above ground height. Any newly installed catch basins shall be treated the same way. 

 Contractor shall have extra silt fence and straw waddles on site during the construction period so 
as to mitigate any breakdown in erosion controls. 

  

Specific Perimeter Controls 
 

Perimeter Control # 1 
Perimeter Control Description 

 Please refer to construction plans for details on the silt fence and its installation 
 

Installation  
 5 days prior to the start of construction  

 
Maintenance Requirements 

 Filter fabric (under catch basin rims) shall be cleaned of any sediment as needed. Sediment must 
be removed from the area of the silt fence if it has accumulated to ½ of the above ground height.  

 

EROSION CONTROL  
 
BIOLOG SILT FENCE EROSION CONTROL SYSTEMS” Safe Harbor,2017, 7pages    

a. Silt Fencing 
i. 24”-high semi-permeable, geotextile filter fabric shall be installed as a silt fence, as 

depicted on the approved site plan of record. 

ii. The silt fence filter fabric shall be pushed down into the grade 4-6”, with a lawn edger 
or similar edged-tool. 

iii. The fabric shall be vertically stapled to wooden stakes every 10’. 
iv. Anytime silt buildup against the fabric exceeds 4”, the load shall be removed by 

hand, to a designated area outside the BZ.  
v. All erosion control systems should be removed following site stabilization and 

successful revegetation. 

b. Biologs: Jute netting/straw biologs shall be installed as a sediment barrier, on the activity-area-
side of the silt fence, as shown on the site plan. 

i. Biologs shall be 14-16” in diameter, as required by project duration, to maintain zero 
discharge performance standards. 

ii. These biologs can be recharged with new straw as necessary. 
iii. Biologs shall be secured with 6” cornstarch ground staples, every 2’. 
iv. Anytime sediment buildup exceeds 4”, the load shall be removed by hand, to a 

designated area outside the BZ.  
v. All erosion control systems should be removed following site stabilization and 

successful revegetation. 

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

13 

4.3 Sediment Track-Out 

General 
 Please see below for the controls that will be used to minimize the track-out of sediment onto off 

site streets, other paved areas, and sidewalks from vehicles exiting the construction site.  

 

Specific Track-Out Controls 
 

Track-Out Control # 1 

 
Track-Out Control Description 

 For any temporary vehicle exit/entrance location onto the site there shall be an aggregate apron 
installed 

 The aggregate apron will be a min of 15’ wide and 12’ deep with a min thickness of 6” 
(aggregate shall consist of ¾” – 1½” native stone) 
 

Maintenance Requirements  
 Where sediment has been tracked-out from the project site onto the surface of off-site streets, 

other paved areas, and sidewalks, you must remove the deposited sediment by the end of the 
same work day in which the track-out occurs or by the end of the next work day if track-out 

occurs on a non-work day. Track-out must be removed by sweeping, shoveling, or vacuuming 
these surfaces, or by using other similarly effective means of sediment removal. You are prohibited 
from hosing or sweeping tracked-out sediment into any stormwater conveyance (unless it is 

connected to a sediment basin, sediment trap, or similarly effective control), storm drain inlet, or 
surface water.”)  

 
Steep Slopes 

a. Specific, low impact protocols are modeled after successful, exceptionally steep, Safe Harbor 
slope stabilization projects.  

b. Stabilization and revegetation are ongoing, linked projects 

c.  Slopes shall be stabilized using Safe Harbor natural systems, as described in Safe Harbor Booklet 
“Stabilizing Steep and Very Steep Slopes Using Natural Systems” Safe Harbor, 2017 (15 pages).  

 

4.4 Stockpiled Sediment or Soil  

General 
 Any stock piles or land clearing debris, associated with the construction of the road, shall comply 

with the requirements of the NPDES Construction General Permit Parts 2.1.2.4 and 7.2.10 

 

Specific Stockpile Controls 
 

Material Stockpiles shall be located outside any natural buffers established as a requirement of this SWPPP 
and physically separated from any stormwater controls.  Stockpiles shall be protected from contact with 
stormwater through the use of a temporary perimeter sediment barrier such as a silt fence or duck 
wattles.  Material stockpiles, where practicable, shall be covered or provided with temporary stabilization 

to avoid direct contact with precipitation or to minimize discharge. Unless infeasible, Material Stockpiles 
shall contained and securely protected from the wind. Material stockpiles will meet the requirements set 
forth in the Town of Truro Zoning Regulations. 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

14 

4.5 Minimize Dust 

 

General 
 The generation of dust shall be minimized by using dust suppression techniques, to the extent 

feasible, shall be used in order to avoid pollutants from being discharged into surface waters. 

 

Specific Dust Controls – If Dust becomes an issue and to the extend feasible 

• Covering 30% or more of the soil surface with non-erodible material 

• Roughening the soil to produce ridges perpendicular to the prevailing wind. Ridges should be 

about six (6) inches in height 

• Frequent watering of excavation and fill areas 

• Providing gravel or paving at entrance/exit drives and parking areas 

4.6 Minimize the Disturbance of Steep Slopes 

General 
 Refer to Site Plan for erosion controls, slope stabilization and re-vegetation. 
 Once the side slopes (2:1) have been graded per plan; the areas shall be covered with loam (or 

onsite “duff” material), seeded with a drought tolerant-slope stability grass seed mix. 

 The seeded areas shall be then covered with a bio-degradable erosion control blanket.  Blanket 
shall be secured to surface per manufactures specifications. 

 Slopes shall be irrigated, to the best extent possible, until the seed is germinated and is established. 

4.7 Topsoil  

General 
 Topsoil stripped from the construction site will be managed by the following two methods 

 
1. If the material can be used on site the excavating contractor shall either stockpile in an 

appropriate location with protection against erosion and sedimentation (see section 4.4) until such 
time as they can use the material or use the material immediately. 

 
2. If the material cannot be used on site, then the excavating contractor shall either stockpile the 

material in an appropriate location with protection against erosion and sedimentation until such 

time as the material can be transported off-site. All material transported off-site must be sent to a 
facility permitted to receive such materials and a copy of the receiving sites provided to the 
Operator. 
 

Excavation Spoils: 
  
Conservation of Geomass 

a. The surface layer of removed overburden in excavation area (Rhizosphere containing native pH 
levels, nutrients and microorganisms) shall carefully be removed and reused. 

b. This project advocates Geocycling of underburden. Disposition rationale is based on natural 
sediment geo-cycling. This underburden is 100% compatible material with banks. 

c. Underburden required for backfill may be left onsite within the L.O.W. 
d. Underburden not required for backfill shall be offered to the Town DPW for use as beach 

nourishment. 

e. Underburden not accepted by the Town may be removed from site. 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

15 

f. Raw areas shall be immediately stabilized, using light straw and jute netting secured with cornstarch 

ground staples every 4 ft.  

4.8 Soil Compaction  

General 

 In areas where final vegetative stabilization will occur or where infiltration practices will be installed 
care needs to be taken in order to condition the soil for seeding or planting.  

 

Specific Soil Compaction Controls 
 
Soil Compaction Control # 1-Restrict vehicle/Equipment use 
Soil Compaction Control Description 

 Restrict vehicle and equipment use in the locations meeting the general description above 

 
Soil Compaction Control # 2-Use Soil Conditioning Techniques 
Soil Compaction Control Description 

 Prior to seeding or planting areas of exposed soil that have been compacted, rake the area 

smooth. Planting areas should be seeded with a drought-tolerant seed mix and covered with a 
biodegradable erosion control blanket, secured in place. Silt fences shall be installed at the tops 
of slope in these areas to prevent erosion and slow the flow of runoff down the slopes. 

 
 

4.9 Storm Drain Inlets 

General 
 Any catch basins rims (within the project site) shall have filter fabric installed under the rim.  Filter 

fabric shall be cleaned of any sediment as needed.  
 

Installation  
 5 days prior to the start of construction (if new catch basins are installed along the roadway during 

construction they shall have filter fabric installed immediately after installation of rim and grate  

 
Maintenance Requirements  

 Clean, or remove and replace, the protection measures as sediment accumulates, the filter 
becomes clogged, and/or performance is compromised.  Where there is evidence of sediment 

accumulation adjacent to the inlet protection measure, you must remove the deposited sediment 
by the end of the same work day in which it is found or by the end of the following work day if 
removal by the same work day is not feasible. 

 
Also, see EPA’s Storm Drain Inlet Protection BMP Fact Sheet at 
www.epa.gov/npdes/stormwater/menuofbmps/construction/storm_drain 

 

4.10 Constructed Stormwater Conveyance Channels  

General 
 No Stormwater Conveyance Channels are proposed as part of this development 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

16 

4.11 Sediment Basins  

General 
 No Sediment Basins are proposed as part of this development 

4.12 Chemical Treatment  

Use of Treatment Chemicals 

Use of treatment chemicals such as polymers, flocculants or other products shall be in addition to 
conventional erosion and sediment controls and shall be used only where treated stormwater is directed 

to a sediment control BMP (such as a sediment basin or perimeter control) prior to discharge. Any 
treatment chemicals selected shall be appropriate for the application, shall comply with state and local 
requirements, be used in accordance with good engineering practice by properly trained personnel. 

 

If any subcontractors use any treatment chemicals (polymers, flocculants, etc.) the subcontractor must 

comply with the minimum requirements set forth in Section 2.1.3.3 of the EPA NPDES Construction General 

Permit  

 

4.13 Dewatering Practices 

General 
 The development of this site does not require any dewatering 

4.14 Other Stormwater Controls 

Equipment Service Area 

 
 There are no equipment service areas associated with the development of the three (3) residential 

homes 
 

Masonry Mixing Area 

 
 Non-stormwater discharges into storm drainage systems or waterways containing slurries from 

concrete or mortar mixing operations shall not be permitted. Masonry mixing areas shall be 
located a minimum distance of 100 linear feet from drainage ways, inlets and surface waters and 
all storm water runoff from these areas shall be contained by a berm or other measures. Run-on 

water to these areas will be diverted to prevent mixing of clean water and water contaminated 
with concrete slurry 

 

Equipment and Vehicle Washing 

 
 There are no equipment washing areas associated with the development of the three (3) 

residential homes 

 
Slope Maintenance 

a. Ongoing stabilization shall utilize Native plantings and Native transplants, which will be 

supervised by Safe Harbor, using established, Safe Harbor protocols.  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

17 

b. Growing season inspections shall be weekly or as otherwise specified.  

c.      End of growing season report shall be provided to the Commission. 

4.15 Site Stabilization 

 Stabilization of disturbed areas must, at a minimum, be initiated immediately whenever any 
clearing, grading, excavating, or other earth disturbing activities have permanently ceased on 
any portion of the site, or temporarily ceased on any portion of the site and will not resume for a 

period exceeding 14 calendar days.  
 On areas where work has temporarily ceased, stabilization must begin immediately as soon as it is 

known that work will be stopped for 14 or more additional calendar days. “Immediately” means as 
soon as practicable, but no later than the end of the next work day, following the day when the 

earth-disturbing activities have temporarily or permanently ceased. The deadline to complete 
stabilization activities is no later than 14 calendar days after initiation of soil stabilization activities 
such as initially seeding, planting, or providing non-vegetative measures for non-vegetative 

stabilization.  
 
 The following types of activities shall constitute the initiation of stabilization:  
  1. Prepping the soil for vegetative or non-vegetative stabilization;  

  2. Applying mulch or other non-vegetative product to the exposed area;  
  3. Seeding or planting the exposed area;  

4. Starting any of the activities in # 1 – 3 on a portion of the area to be stabilized, but not 

on the entire area; and  
5. Finalizing arrangements to have stabilization product fully installed in compliance with 
the applicable deadline for completing stabilization in the EPA NPDES GCP Parts 2.2.1.2 
and 2.2.1.3.  

 

4.16 Long-term Maintenance of Steep Sloped Areas 

 In the event of failure of the drought-tolerant seed mix in sections of the steep-sloped areas, the 
responsible party shall reseed the affected areas and water the areas regularly until seeds have 
germinated. Additional stabilization controls may also be necessary, including installation of 
erosion control blanket and/or silt fencing in and around the area. During construction, the 

contractor shall be responsible for maintenance of steep sloped areas. After construction, the 
property management company will bear the responsibility. 

 

SECTION 5: POLLUTION PREVENTION STANDARDS 

5.1   Potential Sources of Pollution 

Spills 

a. Mechanized equipment shall be stored within the L.O.W. 
b. Mechanized equipment shall be provided with absorbent response materials to protect against 

unintentional petrochemical leaks. 
c. Mechanized equipment shall only utilize the designated access area. 

 

 

POTENTIAL SOURCES OF POLLUTION 
 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

18 

Potential sources of sediment to stormwater runoff include: 

 Clearing, grading, and excavating activities, primarily un-stabilized areas, paving operations, 
demolition and debris disposal, dewatering operations, drilling and blasting, material delivery, 
storage and use, and landscaping operations. 

 
Potential pollutants other than sediment include the following materials and substances that could be 
expected to be present on-site during construction: 

 Heavy Metals – from concrete additives, concrete washout, material delivery, storage and use, 

and hazardous substance/waste spills 
 pH (Acids and Bases) – from concrete washout, painting and cleaning, drilling operations, material 

delivery, storage and use, hazardous waste spills, and sanitary/septic waste. 

 Paints and Solvents – from concrete washout and waste, painting, concrete polishing, cleaning 
products, material delivery and use, hazardous waste spills, and sanitary/septic waste 

 Trash, Debris and Solids – from clearing and grading, paving, concrete wash waste, construction 
painting and cleaning, demolition, drilling and blasting, material delivery storage and use, 

landscaping, and general construction 
 Petroleum Based Products – from material delivery storage and use, hazardous waste spills, vehicle 

and equipment use on site, and vehicle and equipment fueling and maintenance and storage 

 Pesticides/Herbicides – from material delivery, storage and use, hazardous waste spills, vehicle use, 
storage, service, and maintenance 

 Fertilizers/Nutrients – from painting, cleaning products, dewatering, material delivery and storage, 
spills during landscaping operation, sanitary/septic waste 

5.2 Spill Prevention and Response 

SPILL PREVENTION AND RESPONSE PROCEDURES 
 

a. Mechanized equipment shall be stored within the L.O.W. 

b. Mechanized equipment shall be provided with absorbent response materials to protect against unintentional 

petrochemical leaks. 

c. Mechanized equipment shall only utilize the designated access area. 

 

 
The Contractor or Sub-contractor will be responsible to train all personnel in the proper handling and 
cleanup of spilled Hazardous Substances or Oil that will be used by them. No spilled Hazardous 
Substances or Oil will be allowed to come in contact with storm water discharges. If such contact occurs, 

the storm water discharge will be contained on site by measures such as, but not limited to absorbents, 
booms, static resistant pads, sump booms and other clean up equipment until appropriate measures in 
compliance with state and federal regulations are taken to dispose of such contaminated storm water. It 
shall be the responsibility of the Contractor or Subcontractor to be properly trained, and to train all 

personnel in spill prevention and clean up procedures in regards to products used by them. 
 
1. In order to prevent or minimize the potential for a spill of Hazardous Substances or Oil to come into 

contact with storm water, the following steps will be implemented: 
 a) All Hazardous Substances or Oil (such as pesticides, petroleum products, fertilizers, detergents, 
 construction chemicals, acids, paints, paint solvents, cleaning solvents, additives for soil 
 stabilization, concrete curing compounds and additives, etc.) will be stored in a secure location, 

 with their lids on, preferably under cover, when not in use. 
 b) The minimum practical quantity of all such materials will be kept at the Project Site. 
 c) Contractor/Subcontractor responsible for using any Hazardous materials/oil shall have a spill 

 control and containment kit onsite while the Hazardous material/oil is in use. 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

19 

 d) It is the Contractor’s responsibility to ensure that all Hazardous Waste discovered or generated

 at the Project site is disposed of properly by a licensed hazardous material disposal company.
 The Contractor is responsible for not exceeding Hazardous Waste storage requirements 
 mandated by the EPA or state and local authority. 

 
2. In the event of a spill of Hazardous Substances or Oil, the following procedures must be followed: 
 a) All measures must be taken to contain and abate the spill and to prevent the discharge of the 
 Hazardous Substance or Oil to storm water or off-site. (The spill area must be kept well ventilated 

 and personnel must wear appropriate protective clothing to prevent injury from contact with the 
 Hazardous Substances.) 
 b) If the release is equal to or in excess of a reportable quantity, the SWPPP must be modified 

 within seven (7) calendar days of knowledge of the discharge to provide a description of the 
 release, the circumstances leading to the release, and the date of the release. The SWPPP must 
 identify measures to prevent the recurrence of such releases and to respond to such releases. 
 An applicable Critical Incident Form must be completed in accordance with this requirement. 

 c) If the release is determined to not be reportable (less than a reportable quantity) it shall be 
 noted on a Weekly Inspection Report as an unsatisfactory item with a Task for corrective action 
 and shall be noted and dated when implemented. 

 
3. The Contractor or Subcontractor responsible for the use of Hazard materials/Oil on-site will be the spill 
prevention and response coordinator for that material/oil. He will designate individuals or himself who will 
receive spill prevention and response training. These individuals or the contractor/sub-contractor will each 

become responsible for a particular phase of prevention and response.  

5.3 Fueling and Maintenance of Equipment or Vehicles 

If you conduct fueling and/or maintenance of equipment or vehicles at your site, you must provide an 

effective means of eliminating the discharge of spilled or leaked chemicals, including fuel, from the area 
where these activities will take place.  

Examples of effective controls include, but are not limited to, locating activities away from surface waters 

and stormwater inlets or conveyances, providing secondary containment (e.g., spill berms, decks, and 
spill containment pallets) and cover where appropriate, and/or having spill kits readily available. 

To comply with the prohibition in Part 2.3.1.3 of the EPA NDPES CGP, you must:  

a. If applicable, comply with the Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasures (SPCC) requirements in 40 

CFR 112 and Section 311 of the CWA;  

b. Ensure adequate supplies are available at all times to handle spills, leaks, and disposal of used liquids; 

c. Use drip pans and absorbents under or around leaky vehicles;  

d. Dispose of or recycle oil and oily wastes in accordance with other federal, state, tribal, or local 
requirements;  

e. Clean up spills or contaminated surfaces immediately, using dry clean up measures where possible, 
and eliminate the source of the spill to prevent discharge or a furtherance of an ongoing discharge  

f. Do not clean surfaces by hosing the area down 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

20 

CHEMICALS  

a. To protect water quality, use of herbicides, pesticides and rodenticides shall be prohibited within the Buffer 
Zone. 

b.  BMP and IPM standards shall be utilized for weeds, insects and rodents. 
c. Alkaline percolate from concrete may alter nutrient loading of ground water chemistry and impact leaves and 

roots of vegetation; plastic liners shall be utilized with all concrete formwork to protect ground water from 
gravity directed, alkaline percolation. 

d. Non-leaching decking materials shall be used 

5.4 Washing of Equipment and Vehicles 

No washing of construction equipment is proposed or allowed within the project activities. 

5.5 Storage, Handling, and Disposal of Construction Products, Materials, and Wastes 

You must minimize the exposure to stormwater of any of the products, materials, or wastes specified 

below that are present at your site by complying with the requirements in Part 2.3.3.3 of the EPA NPDES 
GCP. 

Note: These requirements do not apply to those products, materials, or wastes that are not a source of 
stormwater contamination or that are designed to be exposed to stormwater.  

5.5.1 Building Products 

For building products: In storage areas, provide either (1) cover (e.g., plastic sheeting or temporary roofs) 
to prevent these products from coming into contact with rainwater, or (2) a similarly effective means 

designed to prevent the discharge of pollutants from these areas.  

Some examples of building products that are typically stored at construction sites include, but are not 
limited to, asphalt sealants, copper flashing, roofing materials, adhesives, concrete admixtures. 

5.5.2 Pesticides, Herbicides, Insecticides, Fertilizers, and Landscape Materials 

 

No use of Pesticides, Herbicides, Insecticides and Fertilizers is proposed or allowed within the project 
activities. 

Landscape Materials In storage areas, provide either (1) cover (e.g., plastic sheeting or temporary roofs) 

to prevent these chemicals from coming into contact with rainwater, or (2) a similarly effective means 
designed to prevent the discharge of pollutants from these areas; and comply with all application and 
disposal requirements included on the registered pesticide, herbicide, insecticide, and fertilizer label. 

 

5.5.3 Diesel Fuel, Oil, Hydraulic Fluids, Other Petroleum Products, and Other Chemicals 
 

To comply with the prohibition in Part 2.3.1.3 of the EPA NDPES CGP, store chemicals in water-tight 
containers, and provide either (1) cover (e.g., plastic sheeting or temporary roofs) to prevent these 

containers from coming into contact with rainwater, or (2) a similarly effective means designed to prevent 
the discharge of pollutants from these areas (e.g., spill kits), or provide secondary containment (e.g., spill  
berms, decks, spill containment pallets); and Clean up spills immediately, using dry clean-up methods 
where possible, and dispose of used materials properly. Do not clean surfaces or spills by hosing the area 

down. Eliminate the source of the spill to prevent a discharge or a continuation of an ongoing discharge. 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

21 

 

 

5.5.4 Hazardous or Toxic Waste 

 
Examples of hazardous or toxic waste that may be present at construction sites include, but are not 

limited to, paints, solvents, petroleum-based products, wood preservatives, additives, curing compounds 
and acids. 
 

(1) Separate hazardous waste from the construction and domestic waste 
 
(2) Store waste in sealed containers, which are constructed of suitable materials to prevent leakage and 
corrosion, and which are labeled in accordance with the applicable Resource Conservation and 

Recovery Act (RCRA) requirements and all other applicable federal, state, tribal, or local requirements; 
 
(3) Store all containers that will be stored outside within the appropriately-sized secondary containment 
(e.g., spill berms, decks, spill containment pallets) to prevent spills from being discharged, or provide a 

similarly effective means designed to prevent the discharge of pollutants from these areas (e.g., storing 
chemicals in covered area or having a spill kit available on-site; 
 

(4) Dispose of hazardous or toxic waste in accordance with the manufacturer’s recommended method 
of disposal and in compliance with the federal, state, tribal, and local requirements; and 
 
(5) Clean up spills immediately, using dry clean-up methods where possible, and dispose of used materials 

properly. Do not clean surfaces or spills by hosing the area down. Eliminate the source of the spill to 
prevent a discharge or furtherance of an ongoing discharge.  
 

5.5.5 Construction and Domestic Waste 
 
Examples of construction and domestic waste include, but are not limited to, packaging materials, scrap 
construction materials, masonry products, timber, pipe and electrical cuttings, plastics, styrofoam, 

concrete, and other trash or building materials. 
 

5.5.6 Waste 

 
a. Onsite trash containers, fitted with a device to secure the lids, shall be used to prevent human 

food waste from entering the native ecosystem. 
b. Worker parking shall be identified, inside the L.O.W. 
c. Worker toilet shall be in place.  

d. Construction materials storage shall be identified inside the L.O.W. Covered Dumpster shall be 
stored within the L.O.W.  

 

5.5.7. Concrete Protocols 

 

“MANAGING CONCRETE” 2019, Safe Harbor, 7 pages 
a. Concrete work shall use Safe Harbor Concrete Management protocols 

b. Polyethylene liners shall be used under footings and slabs.  

c. This also contributes to the quality of the set by controlling moisture loss. 

d. During concrete work, over pour shall be strictly controlled.  
e. Concrete over pour shall be directed to forms for moorings, or a tarp for later removal. 
f. Concrete over pour on tarps shall be left to harden for recycling.  

g. Pumper truck over-pour can be poured onto a tarp dug into a pile of backfill.  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

22 

h. Overpour is not a waste product. When it has dried and set it may be broken up into pieces and re-

used for dry wells.  
 

 

General 

 
Provide waste containers (e.g., dumpster or trash receptacle) of sufficient size and number to contain 

construction and domestic wastes. In addition, you must:  
  
(1) On work days, clean up and dispose of waste in designated waste containers; and  

 
(2) Clean up immediately if containers overflow. 
 
 

5.5.6 Sanitary Waste 
 

Position portable toilets so that they are secure and will not be tipped or knocked over  

5.6 Washing of Applicators and Containers used for Paint, Concrete or Other Materials 

To comply with the prohibition in Parts 2.3.1.1 and 2.3.1.2 of the EPA NPDES CGP, you must provide an 
effective means of eliminating the discharge of water from the washout and cleanout of stucco, paint, 
concrete, form release oils, curing compounds, and other construction materials. To comply with this 

requirement, you must:  

  

 a. Direct all washwater into a leak-proof container or leak-proof pit. The container or pit must be 
 designed so that no overflows can occur due to inadequate sizing or precipitation;  

 
 b. Handle washout or cleanout wastes as follows:  
  
  i. Do not dump liquid wastes in storm sewers;  

  
  ii. Dispose of liquid wastes in accordance with applicable requirements in Part 2.3.3.3 of the 
  EPA NPDES CGP; and  

  
  iii. Remove and dispose of hardened concrete waste consistent with your handling of other 
  construction wastes in Part 2.3.3.3 of the EPA NPDES CGP; and  
  

 c. Locate any washout or cleanout activities as far away as possible from surface waters and 
 stormwater inlets or conveyances, and, to the extent practicable, designate areas to be used for 
 these activities and conduct such activities only in these areas. 

 
Also, see EPA’s Concrete Washout BMP Fact Sheet at 
www.epa.gov/npdes/stormwater/menuofbmps/construction/concrete_wash 
 

5.6.1 Concrete Wash-out Area 

 

General 

 
 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

23 

Alkaline percolate from concrete may alter nutrient loading of ground water chemistry and impact 

leaves and roots of vegetation; plastic liners shall be utilized with all concrete formwork to protect ground 
water from gravity directed, alkaline percolation 
 

The Foundation Contractor (along with any Contractor/Sub-Contractor that will be mixing concrete) shall 
designate an area (in accordance with section 5.6 (c)) and construct a temporary, above grade 
concrete wash-out area. The temporary concrete washout area will be constructed as shown in Figure#1, 
with a recommended minimum length and minimum width of 10’, but with sufficient quantity and volume 

to contain all liquid and concrete waste generated by washout operations. The washout area will be 
lined with plastic sheeting at least 10 mils thick and free of any holes or tears. Signs will be posted marking 
the location of the washout area to ensure that concrete equipment operators use the proper facility. 

 
Concrete pours will not be conducted during or before an anticipated storm event. Concrete mixer 
trucks and chutes will be washed in the designated area or concrete wastes will be properly disposed of 
off-site. When temporary washout area is no longer needed for the construction project, the hardened 

concrete and materials used to construct the area will be removed and disposed of according to the 
maintenance section below, and the area will be stabilized. For design specifications, see Figure #1 
 

 
 

Installation 
 

The washout area will be constructed before concrete pours occur at the site 
 

Maintenance and Inspection 
 

The washout areas will be inspected daily to ensure that all concrete washing is being discharged into the 
washout area, no leaks or tears are present, and to identify when the concrete wastes need to be 
removed. The washout areas will be cleaned out once the area is filled 70 - 75% of the holding capacity. 
Once the area’s holding capacity has been reached, the concrete wastes will be allowed to harden; the 

concrete will be broken up, removed, and taken to an appropriate disposal site. The plastic sheeting will 
be replaced if tears occur during removal of concrete wastes from the washout area. 
 

STORM PULSE INSPECTIONS 
a. Additional inspections shall be performed following storm pulse events. 

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

24 

Figure #1  

5.7 Fertilizers 

The use of fertilizers are not anticipated within the scope of the construction project.  

Discharge of fertilizers containing nitrogen or phosphorus shall be minimized. Fertilizers will be applied only 
in the minimum amounts recommended by the manufacturer. Once applied, fertilizer will be worked in 

the soil to limit exposure to storm water. Apply only at the time of year appropriate for location. Avoid 
application during heavy rain and never apply to frozen ground. Application of fertilizer to stormwater 
conveyance channels or other storm water facilities where water will flow is not permitted. Follow all 

federal, state and local requirements regarding application. Storage will be in a covered shed. The 
contents of any partially used bags of fertilizer will be transferred to a sealable plastic bin to avoid spills 

5.8 Other Pollution Prevention Practices 

No other Pollution Prevention Practices are being proposed at this time 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

25 

SECTION 6: INSPECTION AND CORRECTIVE ACTION 

6.1 Inspection Personnel and Procedures 

*Personnel Responsible for Inspections 

T.B.D. 

 

Employees of the above referenced firm shall be responsible for conducting routine site inspections to ensure all 

BMPs are being implemented and completing inspection reports after each inspection based on established 

inspection schedule as well conducting spot inspections and informal inspections.  

 
*Note:  All personnel conducting inspections must be considered a “qualified person.”  CGP 

Part 4.1.1 clarifies that a “qualified person” is a person knowledgeable in the principles and 
practices of erosion and sediment controls and pollution prevention, who possesses the skills 
to assess conditions at the construction site that could impact stormwater quality, and the 

skills to assess the effectiveness of any stormwater controls selected and installed to meet the 
requirements of this permit. 

 

Inspection Schedule 

 

Per EPA NDPES CGP Section 4.1.2.2 (see below) 

Once every 14 calendar days and within 24 hours of the occurrence of a storm event of 0.25 
inches or greater. To determine if a storm event of 0.25 inches or greater has occurred on your 
site, you must either keep a properly maintained rain gauge on your site, or obtain the storm 

event information from a weather station that is representative of your location. For any day of 
rainfall during normal business hours that measures 0.25 inches or greater, you must record the 
total rainfall measured for that day in accordance with Part 4.1.7.1d of the EPA NDPES CGP.  

 

Inspections will be required on a daily basis if any concrete pouring/washing is taking place. 
Inspections for concrete pouring/washing out shall follow the requirements set forth in section 

5.6.1 

 

*Notes: Inspections are only required during the project’s normal working hours. “Within 24 
hours of the occurrence of a storm event” means that you are required to conduct an 

inspection within 24 hours once a storm event has produced 0.25 inches, even if the storm 
event is still continuing. Thus, if you have elected to inspect bi-weekly in accordance with Part 
4.1.2.2 of the EPA NDPES CGP and there is a storm event at your site that continues for multiple 
days, and each day of the storm produces 0.25 inches or more of rain, you are required to  

conduct an inspection within 24 hours of the first day of the storm and within 24 hours after the 
end of the storm  

 

Rain Gauge Location (if applicable) 

 

No rain gauge will be installed on site storm event rainfall data will be obtained from a weather 

station  

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

26 

INSPECTIONS 

Project Inspections 
a. End of day visual inspections shall prevent unintentional migration on non-indigenous 

materials beyond the LOW. 

b. Regular site inspections, to assure compliance with performance standards, shall be 
made weekly by Safe Harbor. 

c. For the duration of deconstruction, excavation or construction activity, end of day 
inspections shall be performed by a representative of the contractor on site, to control 

unintentional migration of non-indigenous materials beyond the Limit of Work  
d. The L.O.W. shall be inspected and maintained weekly by Safe Harbor, to maintain 

zero discharge performance standards, pending site stability with native 

vegetation. 
e. Mechanized equipment shall be inspected daily to prevent unintentional 

petrochemical discharge. 
 

 
INSPECTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

The Qualified Inspector/Operator shall have the primary responsibility and significant authority for 
the implementation, maintenance, inspection, and modifications to the SWPPP. They will be 
trained in all the inspection and maintenance practices necessary for keeping the Erosion and 
Sediment Controls that are used onsite in good working order. They will also be trained in the 

completion of, initiation of actions required by, and the filing of the inspection forms (found in 
Appendix D & E). Documentation of Qualified Inspector training will be kept on site with the 
SWPPP. 

 
INSPECTION PROCEDURES 
 
Inspections must include all areas of the site disturbed by Construction Activities and areas used 

for storage of materials that are exposed to precipitation. Qualified Inspectors must look for 
evidence of, or the potential for, pollutants entering the storm water conveyance system. Erosion 
and Sediment Control measures identified in the SWPPP must correspond to those implemented 

at the site and each measure must be observed to ensure proper operation. Discharge locations 
must be inspected to ascertain whether Erosion and Sediment Control measures are effective in 
preventing significant impacts to Waters of the United States, where accessible. Where 
discharge locations are inaccessible, nearby downstream locations must be inspected to the 

extent that such inspections are practicable. Locations where vehicles enter or exit the site must 
be inspected for evidence of off-site tracking. The following inspection and maintenance 
practices will be used to maintain Erosion and Sediment Controls and stabilization measures: 

 
a. The Person’s listed in Section 6.1 will be responsible for these inspections, maintenance 
and repair activities, and filling out inspection and maintenance reports. 

 

b. All control measures will be inspected at least at the frequency identified in Section 6.1 
 

c. Silt fences will be inspected for depth of sediment, tears, etc., to see if the fabric is 

securely attached to the fence posts, and to see that the fence posts are securely in the 
ground. 

 
d. All sediment control measures including silt fence and filter fabric on catch basin rims 

shall be inspected for built up of sediment. Corrective action will have to be taken if 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

27 

these inspections reveal that the maintenance requirements set forth in Section 4.2 are 

met. 
 

e. Temporary and permanent seeding and all other stabilization measures will be 

inspected for bare spots, washouts, and healthy growth. 
 
f. Concrete wash-out basins shall be inspected daily, when in use, inspections procedures 
should be followed as set forth in section 5.6.1. 

 
g. An Inspection Report (Appendix D) will be completed after each inspection. Blank 
copies of the report forms to be completed by the Qualified Inspector(s) are included in 

this SWPPP in Appendix D. 
 
h. Disturbed Areas and materials storage areas will be inspected for evidence of or 
potential for pollutants entering stormwater systems. 

 
i. Report to U.S. Environmental Protection Agency within 24 hours of any noncompliance 
with the SWPPP that will endanger public health or the environment. Complete an 

applicable Critical Incident and Reportable Quantity Report. Follow up with a written 
report within 5 days of the noncompliance event.  

The following events require 24 hour reporting:  
a) any unanticipated bypass which exceeds any effluent limitation in the 

permit 
b) any upset which exceeds any effluent limitation in the permit 
c) a violation of a maximum daily discharge limitation for any of the 

pollutants listed by the EPA in the permit to be reported within 24 hours. 
The written 

 
j. Spills or Releases of Hazardous Substances or Oil in excess of reportable quantities (as 

established under 40 CFR Part 110, 40 CFR Part 117 or 40 CFR Part 302) must be reported. 
Section 5.2 provides further details on the notification and reporting process 
 

k. Vehicle track out areas will be inspected to ensure that the are installed properly 
 

Inspection Report Forms 

 

It is imperative that documentation of the inspection and maintenance of all erosion and 
sediment control measures be completed as soon as possible after the inspection and/or 
maintenance is concluded (on form provided in Appendix D), but no more than 2 hours after 

conclusion of any inspection or maintenance activity. The inspection reports identify any 
incidents of non-compliance with the permit conditions. Where a report does not identify any 
incidents of non-compliance, the report must contain a certification that the Project is in 

compliance with the SWPPP and the Construction General Permit or other applicable State 
Permit. The report must be signed in accordance with Appendix I, 11 (Signatory Requirements of 
the Federal NPDES Permit). These records are used to prove that the required inspection and 
maintenance were performed and shall be printed and placed in the SWPPP Ledger. In addition 

to inspection and maintenance reports, records should be kept of the Construction Activities 
that occur on the site. Identified and completed corrective actions will be documented on Form 
in Appendix E. The Contractor shall retain copies of the SWPPP, all reports and data in paper and 

CD format for a minimum of five (5) years after the Project is complete. Forms found in Appendix 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

28 

D & E of this SWPPP shall be used by the Qualified Inspector(s) to inventory and report the 

condition of each measure to assist in maintaining the erosion and sediment control measures in 
good working order. The following list identifies the required Inspection and Maintenance 
documentation and record keeping that must be maintained by the Contractor under this 

SWPPP: 
 

 

 

 

Inspection Reports  

 Bi-Weekly (and Rain Event) Inspection Form (Appendix D) 

 Corrective Action Log (Appendix E) 

 

SWPPP Amendment Log 

 SWPPP Amendment Log (Appendix F) 

 

Training Report 

 Training Report (Appendix I) 

 

Contractor/Subcontractor Certification Agreement  

 Contractor/Subcontractor Certification Agreement (Appendix G) 
 
These report forms shall become an integral part of the SWPPP and shall be made readily 
accessible to governmental inspection officials, the Operator’s Engineer, and the Operator for 

review upon request during visits to the Project site. In addition, copies of the reports shall be 
provided to any of these persons, upon request, via mail or facsimile transmission. Inspection and 
maintenance report forms are to be maintained by the permittee for five (5) years following the 
final stabilization of the site. 

 

OTHER RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS  

 

The Contractor shall keep the following records related to Construction Activities at the site: 
 Dates when major grading activities occur and the areas which were graded 
 Dates and details concerning the installation of structural controls 

 Dates when Construction Activities cease in an area 
 Dates when stabilization measures are initiated 
 Dates when an areas is stabilized, either temporarily or permanently 
 Dates of rainfall and the amount of rainfall 

 Dates and descriptions of the character and amount of any spills of Hazardous 
Substances or Oil 

 Records of reports filed with regulatory agencies if reportable quantities of Hazardous 

Substances or Oil spilled 
 
SWPPP MODIFICATIONS 
 
The inspection report should also identify if any revisions to the SWPPP are warranted due to 
unexpected conditions. The SWPPP is meant to be a dynamic working guide that is to be kept 

current and amended by the Qualified Inspector (or other party if so specified below) whenever: 
 
1. There is a change in design, construction, operation (such as new operators becoming active 
in construction activities), or maintenance at the construction site that has or could have a 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

29 

significant effect on the discharge of pollutants to the Waters of the United States that has not 

been previously addressed in the SWPPP. In addition to modifying the SWPPP, the Site Map may 
also require an amendment. Modifications to the SWPPP and/or Site Map in relation to any 
change in design, construction, operation, or maintenance at the construction site must be 

made within 48 hours of such change. 
2. Inspections or investigations by site staff, or by local, state or federal officials, determine that 
the SWPPP modifications are necessary for compliance with the permit. Modifications resulting 
relation to SWPPP ineffectiveness resulting from an inspection must be initiated within 48 hours. 

 
3. Where EPA (or state regulatory agency) determines it is necessary to impose additional 
requirements on the discharge, the following must be included in the SWPPP within 48 hours 

following the determination: 
a. A copy of any correspondence describing such requirements 
b. A description of the stormwater control measures that will be used to meet such 
requirements. 

 
4. To reflect any revisions to applicable federal, state or local requirements that affect the 
stormwater control measures implemented at the site. 

 
5. If applicable, if a change in chemical treatment systems or chemically enhanced stormwater 
control is made, including use of a different treatment chemical, different dosage rate, or 
different area of application. 

 
6. BMPs are modified or additional BMPs are designed to correct problems identified during an 
inspection. Revisions to the SWPPP related to additional or modified BMPs must be completed 

within 48 hours following the inspection. 
 
7. There is a release involving a Hazardous Substance or Oil in an amount equal to or in excess of 
a reportable quantity established under either 40 CFR Part 110, 40 CFR Part 117 or 40 CFR Part 

302. Revisions to the SWPPP must be completed within seven (7) calendar days of knowledge of 
the release. 
 

8. A change in design, construction, operation, or maintenance materially affects the site’s spill 
potential per 40 CFR Part 112. Modifications to the SWPPP in relation to such change must be 
made within 48 hours of the change. 
 

9. The Contractor’s failure to modify the SWPPP to include off-site borrow or fill areas used solely 
for the Project or to monitor or report deficiencies to the Operator will result in the Contractor 
being liable for fines and construction delays resulting from any federal, state, or local agency 

enforcement action. 
 
10. Modifications or changes in locations of materials management BMPs shown on the Site 
Map. Documentation of such modifications or changes must be documented on a Modification 

Form and depicted on the Site Map within 48 hours of the change. Any such changes to the 

SWPPP must be made in writing on the SWPP Amendment Log (Appendix F) within 48 hours of 
the date such modification or amendment is made to the SWPPP. Changes must also be drawn 
on the Site Map within 48 hours of any modification or amendment is made to the SWPPP. 
 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

30 

6.2 Corrective Action  

Any runoff controls, sediment controls, materials BMPs, or erosion controls found to need 
corrective action such as replacement, repair, or maintenance shall be entered into the 

Corrective Action Log Form (Appendix E) and dated upon completion. Any minor corrective 
action shall be initiated immediately after discovery and completed by the close of the next 
work day; any major corrective action or replacement shall be initiated within 24 hours and 
completed within 48 hours. 

 
 

 

6.3 Delegation of Authority 

Duly Authorized Representative(s) or Position(s): 

 

Mr. Bob Ryley, Construction Manager 

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD 

411 Main Street, Suite 6 

Yarmouthport, MA 02675 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

31 

SECTION 7: TRAINING 

 

Individual Responsible for Initial Training 

 
J.M. O’REILLY & ASSOCIATES, INC. will be responsible for training the Owner/Operator of HABIATATE FOR 
HUMANITY OF CAPE COD.  It will then be his/her responsibility to train any and all 

contractors/subcontractors that will be working onsite for general stormwater and BMP awareness with 
detailed training for those contractors/subcontractors with specific stormwater responsibilities. It will also 
be his/her Responsibility to train the Qualified Inspector. 

 

Training that will be conducted: 

 
• J.M. O’REILLY & ASSOCIATES, INC. will provide information to the Owner/Operator (HABITAT FOR 

HUMANITY OF CAPE COD) regarding BMP’s that will be used onsite and any plans, specifications, 

and installation requirements.  

 

• The Owner/Operator will conduct informal training for all staff, including subcontractors, on the 
site. The training will be conducted primarily via tailgate sessions and will focus on avoiding 
damage to stormwater BMPs and preventing illicit discharges. The tailgate sessions will be 

conducted as needed and will address the following topics: Erosion Control BMPs, Sediment 
Control BMPs, Non-Stormwater BMPs, Waste Management and Materials Storage BMPs, and 
Emergency Procedures specific to the construction site. (See Appendix I – SWPPP Training Log) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

32 

SECTION 8: CERTIFICATION AND NOTIFICATION 

The following certification statement must be signed and dated by a person who meets the requirements 

of CGP Appendix I, Part 1.11. This Certification must be resigned in the event of a SWPPP Modification. 

Owner/Operator – HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD 

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction 
or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gathered 

and evaluated the information submitted.  Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the 
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to 
the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete.  I am aware that there are 

significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for 
knowing violations. 

Name:    Title:  

Signature:    Date:  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – CLOVELEAF DEVELOPMENT  TRURO, MA 
COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE  JMO-8446A 

33 

SWPPP APPENDICES 

Attach the following documentation to the SWPPP: 

Appendix A – Site Maps 

Appendix B – Copy of 2012 CGP 

Appendix C – NOI and EPA Authorization Email  

Appendix D – Inspection Form  

Appendix E – Corrective Action Form  

Appendix F – SWPPP Amendment Log  

Appendix G – Subcontractor/Contractor Certifications/Agreements  

Appendix H – Grading and Stabilization Activities Log  

Appendix I – Training Log 

Appendix J – Delegation of Authority  

Appendix K – Endangered Species Documentation 

Appendix L – Historic Preservation Documentation 

  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

Appendix A – Site Maps  

 

  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

Appendix B – Copy of 2012 CGP  

 

  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

Appendix C – Copy of NOI and EPA Authorization email  

 

 
  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

Appendix D – Copy of Inspection Form  

 

  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

Appendix E – Copy of Corrective Action Form  

 

  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

Appendix F – SWPPP Amendment Log 
 

 

 

No. Description of the Amendment Date of 

Amendment  

Amendment Prepared by 

[Name(s) and Title] 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

 

Appendix G – Subcontractor Certifications/Agreements 

 
SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION 

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN 
 

 

Project Number:                                                                                               
 
Project Title:    

 
Operator(s):    
 
As a subcontractor, you are required to comply with the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 

(SWPPP) for any work that you perform on-site.  Any person or group who violates any condition 
of the SWPPP may be subject to substantial penalties or loss of contract.  You are encouraged to 
advise each of your employees working on this project of the requirements of the SWPPP.  A 

copy of the SWPPP is available for your review at the office trailer. 
 
Each subcontractor engaged in activities at the construction site that could impact stormwater 
must be identified and sign the following certification statement: 

 

I certify under the penalty of law that I have read and understand the terms and conditions of 

the SWPPP for the above designated project and agree to follow the practices described in the 

SWPPP.  
 
This certification is hereby signed in reference to the above named project:  

 
Company:    
  
Address:         

 
Telephone Number:    
 

Type of construction service to be provided:       
 
  
 

   
 
Signature:       

  
Title:      
  
Date:   



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

Appendix H – Grading and Stabilization Activities Log 

• Refer to Site Plan for straw waddle, silt fence, erosion control blanket and re-vegetation notes. 

 

Date 

Grading 

Activity 

Initiated 

Description of Grading Activity Description of Stabilization Measure 

and Location 

Date Grading 

Activity Ceased 
(Indicate 
Temporary or 

Permanent) 

Date When 

Stabilization 

Measures 

Initiated 

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

 

 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

 

 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

Appendix I – SWPPP Training Log 

 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Training Log 
 

Project Name:   

 
Project Location:   

 
Instructor’s Name(s):   

 
Instructor’s Title(s):   

 
 
Course Location:    Date:   

 
Course Length (hours):   
 

Stormwater Training Topic:  (check as appropriate) 
 
 Sediment and Erosion 

Controls 

 Emergency Procedures 

    
 Stabilization Controls  Inspections/Corrective Actions 
    
 Pollution Prevention 

Measures 

  

 

Specific Training Objective:  

  

 
Attendee Roster:  (attach additional pages as necessary) 
 

No. Name of Attendee Company 

1   

2   

3   

4   

5   

6   

7   

8   

 



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

Appendix J – Delegation of Authority Form 

 

Delegation of Authority 
 

 
I, _______________________ (name), hereby designate the person or specifically described position 

below to be a duly authorized representative for the purpose of overseeing compliance with 
environmental requirements, including the Construction General Permit, at the 
____________________________________ construction site.  The designee is authorized to sign any 

reports, stormwater pollution prevention plans and all other documents required by the permit.   
 

________________________________________ (name of person or position) 
________________________________________ (company) 

________________________________________ (address) 
________________________________________ (city, state, zip) 
________________________________________ (phone) 

   
By signing this authorization, I confirm that I meet the requirements to make such a designation 
as set forth in Appendix I of EPA’s Construction General Permit (CGP), and that the designee 
above meets the definition of a “duly authorized representative” as set forth in Appendix I. 

 
I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my 
direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel 
properly gathered and evaluated the information submitted.  Based on my inquiry of the person 

or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the 
information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, 
accurate, and complete.  I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false 

information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations. 
 

Name:                                                             
 

Company:         
 

Title:   
 

Signature:   
 

Date:    
 

  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

Appendix K – Endangered Species Documentation  

 

  



 
 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 

COMMUNITY HOUSING RESOURCE – CLOVERLEAF PROJECT – HIGHLAND ROAD-TRURO 

 

EPA SWPPP – 181 ROUTE 6  TRURO, MA 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF CAPE COD  JMO-6860 

 

Appendix L – Historic Properties Documentation 

Not applicable 

 



1

Jeffrey Ribeiro

From: c.e.steinman <c.e.steinman@comcast.net>
Sent: Sunday, June 14, 2020 4:04 PM
To: Jeffrey Ribeiro; Art Hultin
Cc: Rae Ann Palmer
Subject: Comments for the ZBA Public Hearing Regarding the Cloverleaf Project 
Attachments: Cloverleaf_Option_6-11-2020.pdf; Original cloverleaf_Site_Plan.pdf

To the Zoning Board of Appeals;: 
 
I request that the following comments be read into the public record regarding the proposed Cloverleaf Project. 
 
I had previously been in support of Building 21 with its fifteen apartments and commons spaces serving as a congregate 
housing component of the proposed Cloverleaf Project. Having had a 25‐year career in the interior design for senior 
housing, including retirement communities, assisted living, nursing and Alzheimer care projects, I thought the proposal 
for Building 21 would offer Truro additional housing opportunities for our aging population. However, the devastating 
impact of the Coronavirus on seniors in congregate housing is a game changer. 
 
With the uncertain future of the COVID‐19 pandemic, Building 21 as currently designed might not be manageable, and 
importantly, not marketable either. Individual‐entry apartments as elsewhere on the site are a safer option. 
 
Attached is a concept sketch for replacing the large congregate building with three town‐houses, similar in design to 
units 2, 4 and 6.  Taking advantage of the site's topography, there could be six ground‐floor apartments entered on the 
front and back of the town‐house buildings that will have at‐grade access. Those apartments could be designed for 
accessibility, similar to unit 2A. This would reduce the number of units in Building 21 from 15 to 9 in the town‐houses, 
resulting in an overall reduction of 6 units. The total units will decrease from 40 to 34. At the same time, the redesign 
could increase the number of accessible units from 4 to 7.  
 
This proposal is not trying to solve all the water quality issues presented in the peer engineering review, which may 
require appropriate on‐site septic treatment and possibly an overall reduction in the number of units. However, the 
proposed design change with its reduction in the number of units could be a step in the right direction to help resolve 
the water quality issue while also making the project more beneficial to our community. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment and for your consideration, 
 
Chuck Steinman 
c.e.steinman@comcast.net 
cell 617‐974‐1613 
 
PO Box 781/Shore Road 
North Truro, MA 02652 
 
Cloverleaf Option Conceptual Site Plan, Replacing Building 21 with 3 Town‐House Buildings: 
 
Cloverleaf Original Illusrative Site Plan Showing Building 21: 
 
 



(Note: The design for this concept sketch would need to be 
refined for the three town-houses that replace Building 21 to 
more properly relate the building design and access such that 
the 6 lower level units are all accessible.)

Cloveleaf Option
Conceptual Site Plan
June 11, 2020























































































































































CLOVERLEAF TRURO RENTAL HOUSING
BUILDINGS 1-3, 2-4, AND 6-8 (Buildings may be mirrored)

Truro, Massachusetts

Thursday, February  20, 2020

INTERIORS  ARCHITECTURE SPACE PLANNING

21 Dartmouth Street, Somerville, MA, 02145 ~ 617.623.1833



BATHROOM

KITCHEN

DINING

Q

DW

REF.

14R
DN

13R
UP

P

BEDROOM

LIVING

CLOSET

PATIO ROOF
BELOW

UNIT 1, UNIT 4, AND UNIT 8
1,218 SQ. FT.

NOT INCLUDED:
169 SQ. FT.

UNHEATED STORAGE

(UNIT MAY BE MIRRORED)

2
7
'-0

"

UNFINISHED

BRASSFAUCETSPURISTK-T14428-4

BATHROOM
2

28'-8"

BEDROOM 2

DEN

14R
UP

PATIO

CRAWLSPACE

25'-5" 7'-3"

32'-8"

CRAWL-
SPACE

1
0
'-0

"

4'-0" 6
'-0

"

1
0
'-0

"

UNIT 1, UNIT 4, AND UNIT 8
1,218 SQ. FT.

NOT INCLUDED:
169 SQ. FT.

UNHEATED STORAGE

(UNIT MAY BE MIRRORED)

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
S
 1

-3
, 
 2

-4
, 
A
N
D

 6
-8

C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

U
N
IT

 1
, 
U
N
IT

 4
, 
A
N
D

 U
N
IT

 8
 P

LA
N
S

A1.1

FIRST/GARDEN LEVEL PLAN UNIT 1, UNIT 4, AND UNIT 8
SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1 SECOND/MAIN ENTRY LEVEL PLAN UNIT 1, UNIT 4,  AND UNIT 8
SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2



BUILDINGS 1-3, 2-4, AND 6-8
(MAY BE MIRRORED)

FLAT

Q

W/D

DW
REF. 13R

DN

UNIT 2, UNIT 3, AND UNIT 6
740 SQ. FT.

LIVING/DINING
KITCHEN

BEDROOM

BATHROOM

ROOF BELOW

(UNIT MAY BE MIRRORED)

ROOF
BELOW

FLAT ROOF

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
S
 1

-3
, 
 2

-4
, 
A
N
D

 6
-8

C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

TH
IR

D
 L

EV
EL

 A
N
D

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A
N
S

A1.2

THIRD LEVEL PLAN UNIT 2, UNIT 3, AND UNIT 6
SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1 BUILDINGS 1-3, 2-4, AND 6-8 ROOF PLAN
SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2



51.00

49.00

2
3
'-0

"

9
'-0

"

RIDGE HEIGHT

9
'-0

 3
/4

"

TOP PLATE ELEV.

THIRD LEVEL ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV./
TOP OF FOUNDATION

GRADE2
'-0

"

3
'-4

"

TRASH
AND BIKE
STORAGE
AREA
UNDER
STAIR

51.00
50.00TOP OF FOUNDATION
49.00GRADE

42.00
41.00

9
'-0

"
9
'-0

"

RIDGE HEIGHT

9
'-0

 3
/4

"

TOP PLATE ELEV.

THIRD LEVEL ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST/GARDEN LEVEL ELEV.

2
3
'-0

"

9
'-0

"
9
'-0

"

RIDGE HEIGHT

9
'-0

 3
/4

"

TOP PLATE ELEV.

THIRD LEVEL ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST/GARDEN LEVEL ELEV.

2
3
'-0

"

9
'-0

"
9
'-0

"

RIDGE HEIGHT

9
'-0

 3
/4

"

TOP PLATE ELEV.

THIRD LEVEL ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST/GARDEN LEVEL ELEV. S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
S
 1

-3
, 
 2

-4
, 
A
N
D

 6
-8

C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/4" = 1'-0"

FR
O

N
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

A2.1

FRONT ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1 RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2

BACK ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

3 LEFT SIDE ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

4



CLOVERLEAF TRURO RENTAL HOUSING
BUILDING 5-7
Truro, Massachusetts

Thursday, February 20, 2020

INTERIORS  ARCHITECTURE SPACE PLANNING

21 Dartmouth Street, Somerville, MA, 02145 ~ 617.623.1833



UNIT 7
742 SQ. FT.

13R
UP

Q

DW

W/D

REF.

P

KITCHEN

DINING

LIVING

BEDROOM

BATHROOM

CLOSET

Q

W/D

DW
REF. 13R

DN

UNIT 5
752 SQ. FT.

BEDROOM

LIVING/DINING
KITCHEN

BEDROOM

BATHROOM

FLAT

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 5

-7
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

U
N
IT

S
 5

 A
N
D

 U
N
IT

 7
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N
S

A1.1

UNIT 5 FLOOR PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1 UNIT 7 FLOOR PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2



BUILDING 5-7

FLAT

2
7
'-0

"

28'-8"

CRAWLSPACE

3
3
'-0

"

25'-5"

7'-3"

32'-8"
1
0
'-0

"

CRAWLSPACE

4'-0"

FOUNDATION

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 5

-7
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

FO
U
N
D

A
TI

O
N
 A

N
D

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A
N
S

A1.2

FOUNDATION PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1 BUILDING 5-7 ROOF PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2



2
3
'-0

"

9
'-0

"
RIDGE HEIGHT

9
'-1

"

TOP PLATE ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

2
3
'-0

"

9
'-0

"

RIDGE HEIGHT

9
'-1

"

TOP PLATE ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

3
'-4

"

TRASH
AND BIKE
STORAGE
AREA
UNDER
STAIR

2
3
'-0

"

9
'-0

"

RIDGE HEIGHT

9
'-1

"

TOP PLATE ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

2
3
'-0

"

9
'-0

"

RIDGE HEIGHT

9
'-1

"

TOP PLATE ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 5

-7
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

FR
O

N
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

A2.1

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1 RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2

BACK ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

3 LEFT SIDE ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

4



CLOVERLEAF TRURO RENTAL HOUSING
BUILDINGS 9-11, 10-12,  17-19, AND 18-20

Truro, Massachusetts

Thursday, February 20, 2020

INTERIORS  ARCHITECTURE SPACE PLANNING

21 Dartmouth Street, Somerville, MA, 02145 ~ 617.623.1833



1
6
'-0

"

C L
C
L

7
'-0

"

3
0
'-0

"

35'-6" 4'-6"

40'-0"

CRAWLSPACE
215 SQ. FT.

CRAWLSPACE
215 SQ. FT.

(UNITS 9, 10,19, AND 20 HAVE FINISHED
BASEMENTS FOR DEN

(CONVERTIBLE TO BR. 3)/ LAUNDRY)
MAY BE MIRRORED

UP

UNFINISHED BASEMENT /LAUNDRY

UP
FIRE-RATED

SHARED
UTILITY
ROOM

VITREOUS CHINALAVATORYLADENAK-2214

VITREOUS CHINALAVATORYLADENAK-2214

1
6
'-0

"

3
0
'-0

"

C L
C
L

KITCHEN

LIVING AND
DINING

POWDER

KITCHEN

LIVING AND
DINING

UP

UP

D
N

D
N

40'-0"

POWDER

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 2

BATHROOM

BATHROOM

DN

DN

LINEN

LINEN

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
S
  
9
-1

1
, 
1
0
-1

2
, 
1
7
-1

9
. 
A
N
D

 1
8
-2

0

C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

FL
O

O
R
 P

LA
N
S

A1.0

BASEMENT PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1 FIRST LEVEL PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2

SECOND LEVEL PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

3 ROOF PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2



2
6
'-8

"

8
'-1

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

7
'-0

"

2
6
'-8

"

8
'-1

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

2
6
'-8

"

8
'-1

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

2
6
'-8

"

8
'-1

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV. AT 46.50

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
S
  
9
-1

1
, 
1
0
-1

2
, 
1
7
-1

9
. 
A
N
D

 1
8
-2

0

C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N
S

A2.1

FRONT ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1

BACK ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

3

SIDE ELEVATION 1 (SIDE MAY BE MIRRORED DEPENDING ON THE BUILDING)
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2

SIDE ELEVATION 2  (SIDE MAY BE MIRRORED DEPENDING ON THE BUILDING)
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

4

BASBASBASASBASBASBASBASBBASBASASASASASASBASBASASEMEEMEEMEEMEEMEEMEEMEEMEEMEEMEEENT LEVEVEVEVEVEVEVEVEVEVVEVE ELELELELELEELELELELEELEE ELEV.BASBASBASBASASASSSSSSSSASEMEEMEEMEEMEEMEMEMEMEEEEM NT LEVEVEEVEVEVVVVVEVELEL EELELELEL ELEV.

9
'-

9
'-

9
'-

9
'-

9
'-

9
'-

9
'-

9
'-

9
'-

9
'-

9
'-

9
'-

9
0
"

0
"

0
"

0
"

0
""

0
"

0
"

0
"

0
""

0
"

0000



CLOVERLEAF TRURO RENTAL HOUSING
BUILDINGS 13-15 AND 14-16

Truro, Massachusetts

Thursday, February 20, 2020

INTERIORS  ARCHITECTURE SPACE PLANNING

21 Dartmouth Street, Somerville, MA, 02145 ~ 617.623.1833



1
6
'-0

"

C L
C
L

7
'-0

"

3
0
'-0

"

35'-6" 4'-6"

40'-0"

CRAWLSPACE
215 SQ. FT.

CRAWLSPACE
215 SQ. FT.

UP

UNFINISHED BASEMENT /LAUNDRY

UP
FIRE-RATED

SHARED
UTILITY
ROOM

UNFINISHED BASEMENT /LAUNDRY

VITREOUS CHINALAVATORYLADENAK-2214

VITREOUS CHINALAVATORYLADENAK-2214

1
6
'-0

"

3
0
'-0

"

C L
C
L

KITCHEN

LIVING AND
DINING

POWDER

KITCHEN

LIVING AND
DINING

UP

UP

D
N

D
N

40'-0"

POWDER

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 2

BATHROOM

BATHROOM

DN

DN

LINEN

LINEN

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
S
  
1
3
-1

5
 A

N
D

 1
4
-1

6

C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

FL
O

O
R
 P

LA
N
S

A1.0

BASEMENT PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1 FIRST LEVEL PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2

SECOND LEVEL PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

3 ROOF PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2

3
0
'-0

"
00000000000



2
6
'-8

"

8
'-1

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

7
'-0

"

2
6
'-8

"

8
'-1

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

2
6
'-8

"

8
'-1

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

2
6
'-8

"

8
'-1

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV. AT 46.50

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
S
  
1
3
-1

5
 A

N
D

 1
4
-1

6

C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N
S

A2.1

FRONT ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1

BACK ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

3

SIDE ELEVATION 1 (SIDE MAY BE MIRRORED DEPENDING ON THE BUILDING)
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2

SIDE ELEVATION 2  (SIDE MAY BE MIRRORED DEPENDING ON THE BUILDING)
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

4

2
6
'

2
6
'

2
6
'

2
6
'

2
6
'

2
6
'

2
6
'

2
6
'

2
6
'

2
6
'

2
6
'

2
6

2
6

2
66

2
-8

"
-8

"
-8

"
-8

"
-8-8-8

"
8
"

-8
"

8
"

8
"

-8-88
"

8
"

88

8
'-

88888888888888
1
"

EV.EV.

EV.EV.



CLOVERLEAF TRURO RENTAL HOUSING
BUILDING 21
Truro, Massachusetts

Thursday, February 20, 2020

INTERIORS  ARCHITECTURE SPACE PLANNING

21 Dartmouth Street, Somerville, MA, 02145 ~ 617.623.1833



1
0
'-0

"
3
'-6

"

33'-0" 8'-6" 34'-0"8'-6"34'-0"

34'-0"

5
8
'-2

"

OFFICE/
FILE STORAGE

MECHANICAL
ROOM B

PUMP
ROOM LAUNDRY

ROOM

MANAGEMENT
OFFICE

STORAGE UNITS A

UNIT 001
SQ. FT. 675

ELEV.

COMMUNITY ROOM
SQ. FT. 856

KITCHENETTE

VESTIBULE

STAIR 1 STAIR 2

50'-0"

1
3
'-6

"

35'-0"

7'-6" 7'-6"

118'-0"

STORAGE UNITS B

UNIT 002
SQ. FT. 675

BATHROOM 1

RECYCLING

W
A
ITIN

G

2
'-8

"
4
2
'-0

"
1
0
'-0

"

BATHROOM 2

UP UP

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

1
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

B
A
S
EM

EN
T 

FL
O

O
R
 P

LA
N

A1.0BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1



34'-0"

1
3
'-6

"

50'-0"

4
2
'-0

"

UNIT 102
SQ. FT. 603

UNIT 101
SQ. FT. 639

UNIT 103
SQ. FT. 861

UNIT 106
SQ. FT. 639

LOBBY

ENTRY PORT

ELEV.
STAIR 1

STAIR 2

33'-0"8'-6" 8'-6"34'-0"

LAUNDRY
1

UNIT 105
SQ. FT. 603

UNIT 104
SQ. FT. 861

5
8
'-2

"
2
'-8

"

DN UPDNUP

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

1
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

FI
R
S
T 

FL
O

O
R
 P

LA
N

A1.1

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1



34'-0"

1
3
'-6

"

50'-0"

4
2
'-0

"

ELEV.
STAIR 2

UNIT 202
SQ. FT. 655

UNIT 201
SQ. FT. 655

UNIT 204
SQ. FT. 741

UNIT 205
SQ. FT. 655

UNIT 206
SQ. FT. 655

UNIT 207
SQ. FT. 742

UNIT 203
SQ. FT. 741

LAUNDRY 3

5
'-6

"

2
'-8

"

6
3
'-8

"

8
'-2

"

34'-0" 7'-11 1/2" 34'-1"

DN
STAIR 1

DN

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

1
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

S
EC

O
N
D

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

A1.2

SECOND FLOOR PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1



S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

1
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

R
O

O
F 

PL
A
N

A1.3

ROOF PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1



00

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

1
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

FR
O

N
T 

A
N
D

 B
A
C

K 
EL

EV
A
TI

O
N
S

A2.1

FRONT ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1

BACK ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2

DDDDDDDDDDDD 00000000000000

NNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS



4
0
'-9

"

9
'-0

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

ATTIC LEVEL ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

EXISTING NATURAL GRADE AT POINT BC: 45.501
'-6

"

FIRST LEVEL ELEV. AT 56.00

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV. AT 47.00

9
'-0

"

3
5
'-3

"

9
'-0

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

ATTIC LEVEL ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

EXISTING NATURAL GRADE AT POINT AB: 51.00

4
'-0

"

FIRST LEVEL ELEV. AT 56.00

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV. AT 47.00

9
'-0

"

3
0

'-3
" H

EI
G

H
T 

FR
O

M
FI

R
S
T 

FL
O

O
R
 T

O
 R

ID
G

E

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

1
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

LE
FT

 S
ID

E 
EL

EV
A
TI

O
N

A2.2

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1



3
7
'-3

" 9
'-0

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

ATTIC LEVEL ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

EXISTING NATURAL GRADE AT POINT DA: 49.00

2
'-0

"

FIRST LEVEL ELEV. AT 56.00

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV. AT 47.00

9
'-0

"

3
0
'-3

"

9
'-0

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

ATTIC LEVEL ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

EXISTING NATURAL GRADE AT POINT CD: 43.50

3
'-6

"

FIRST LEVEL ELEV. AT 56.00

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV. AT 47.00

9
'-0

"

3
0

'-3
" H

EI
G

H
T 

FR
O

M
FI

R
S
T 

FL
O

O
R
 T

O
 R

ID
G

E

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

1
C

LO
V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

R
IG

H
T 

S
ID

E 
EL

EV
A
TI

O
N

A2.3

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"

1



CLOVERLEAF TRURO RENTAL HOUSING
BUILDING 22-24 AND 23-25(MIRRORED)

Truro, Massachusetts

Thursday, February 20, 2020

INTERIORS  ARCHITECTURE SPACE PLANNING

21 Dartmouth Street, Somerville, MA, 02145 ~ 617.623.1833



UNFINISHED
UTILITY ROOM

DEN (CONVERTIBLE TO BR. 4)/ LAUNDRY

FINISHED
LAUNDRY
ROOM

UNFINISHED
BASEMENT

UNFINISHED
BASEMENT

1660 SQ. FT. 1309 SQ. FT.

UP UP

UNIT 24 & UNIT 25 UNIT 22 & UNIT 23

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

2
-2

4
 A

N
D

 2
3
-2

5
 (
M

IR
R
O

R
ED

)
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

B
A
S
EM

EN
T 

FL
O

O
R
 P

LA
N

A1.0

BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1



30'-0"

16'-0"

4
'-6

"

23'-0"

2
1
'-0

"

16'-0"

23'-0"

9
'-6

"

62'-0"

3
0
'-6

"

4
'-6

"

23'-0"

2
1
'-0

"

16'-0"

9
'-6

"

3
0
'-6

"

BEDROOM

KITCHEN

LIVING ROOM/
DINING ROOM

LIVING ROOM/
DINING ROOM

BATHROOM

BEDROOM

BATHROOM

KITCHEN

DNDN

UPUP

1660 SQ. FT. 1309 SQ. FT.
UNIT 24 & UNIT 25 UNIT 22 & UNIT 23

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

2
-2

4
 A

N
D

 2
3
-2

5
 (
M

IR
R
O

R
ED

)
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

FI
R
S
T 

FL
O

O
R
 P

LA
N

A1.1

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1



BATHROOM

BEDROOM

BEDROOMBEDROOM

BATHROOM

BEDROOM

DNDN

UNIT 24 & UNIT 25
1660 SQ. FT.

UNIT 22 & UNIT 23
1309 SQ. FT.

LINEN LINEN

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

2
-2

4
 A

N
D

 2
3
-2

5
 (
M

IR
R
O

R
ED

)
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

S
EC

O
N
D

 F
LO

O
R
 A

N
D

 R
O

O
F 

PL
A
N
S

A1.2

SECOND FLOOR PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1

ROOF PLAN
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

2



(2
4
'-8

")

8
'-2

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

GRADE ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

(2
4
'-8

")

8
'-2

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

GRADE ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

(2
4
'-8

")

8
'-2

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

GRADE ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

2
-2

4
 A

N
D

 2
3
-2

5
 (
M

IR
R
O

R
ED

)
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

FR
O

N
T 

A
N
D

 B
A
C
K 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N
S

A2.1

FRONT ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1

BACK ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1



(2
4
'-8

")

8
'-2

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

GRADE ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

(2
4
'-8

")

8
'-2

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

GRADE ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

(2
4
'-8

")

8
'-2

"
9
'-0

"

MAIN RIDGE HEIGHT

PLATE HEIGHT ELEV.

SECOND LEVEL ELEV.

FIRST LEVEL ELEV.

GRADE ELEV.

BASEMENT LEVEL ELEV.

9
'-0

"

GRADE ELEV.

5
'-6

" S 
 P

  R
  I

  N
  G

   
 H

  I
  L

  L
   

 D
  E

  S
  I

  G
  N

A 
R 

C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 U

 R
 E

 
I N

 T
 E

 R
 I 

O
 R

 S
S 

P 
A 

C
 E

  P
 L

 A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

21
 D

ar
tm

ou
th

 S
tre

et
, S

om
er

vil
le

 ,M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts 
02

14
5 

~
 6

17
.6

23
.1

83
3

D
A
TE

:
0
2
.2

0
.2

0
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

B
U
IL

D
IN

G
 2

2
-2

4
 A

N
D

 2
3
-2

5
 (
M

IR
R
O

R
ED

)
C
LO

V
ER

LE
A
F 

TR
U
R
O

 R
EN

TA
L 

H
O

U
S
IN

G

1/8" = 1'-0"

S
ID

E 
EL

EV
A
TI

O
N
S

A2.2

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION
 SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"
 

1



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

TOWN OF TRURO 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MEETING MINUTES 
June 25, 2018 
TRURO TOWN HALL 
 
Members Present:  Chair-Bertram Perkel, Art Hultin, John Dundas, Fred Todd, John Thornley, Alternate-
Susan Areson 
 
Members Absent:  Chris Lucy 
 
Others Present:  Interim Town Planner-Jessica Bardi, Atty. Christopher Snow, Kevin Shea, Atty. Liz 
McNichols, Judy Richland, Atty. Benjamin Zehnder, Fred Gaechter, Atty. David Reid, Frank Dubinski, 
Regan McCarthy, Nathalie Ferrier, Joanne Barkan, Joan Holt 
 
Chair Perkel called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.   
 
Chair Perkel advised the audience that the Stephens Way item (2nd item listed on the agenda) was going 
to be continued.  The ZBA received an application to continue.   
 
Chair Perkel made a motion to continue 2018-003/ZBA-Susan Solomont to the next available meeting. 
Member Thornley seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Chair Perkel then stated that the ZBA would take the next item out of order to discuss. 
 
2018-007/ZBA – Kevin R. Shea and Judith Richland, for property located at 402 Shore Road (Atlas 
Sheet 10, Parcel 22, Registry of Deeds title reference, Book 13530, Page 012).  Applicants are seeking a 
variance or amendment to the variance, whichever the Board deems appropriate, w/ref. to Section 
50.1 (lot size) of the Zoning Bylaw that was granted on January 30, 2017 (docket #2016-013/ZBA) to 
construct a single family residence as per plans filed and extended to July 30, 2018.  The applicant is 
requesting to substitute the previously approved plans and to amend the period to exercise the 
variance to January 30, 2019. 
 
Atty. Christopher Snow approached the Board.  He represents the applicants.  He stated that he did not 
find that the Public Hearing had been published.  Chair Perkel said that if Atty. Snow thinks that is a 
defect, then the Board will advertise and place the hearing on another agenda, however there is some 
sense that it was not necessary to advertise.  Atty. Snow stated that not advertising could pose a 
significant hazard to the petitioner.  If the petitioner waits the specified 20 days without an appeal, then 
pulls a building permit, then a person can come along and claim a defective notice and challenge the 
building permit for a period of up to 90 days.  He would like the public hearing advertised for the next 
meeting of July 30th, 2018.  Chair Perkel stated that they would advertise for the next meeting. 
Interim Town Planner Bardi interjected to say that she had confirmation from the Cape Cod Media 
Group of the public hearing being published on June 9th and June 16th.  She brought forth a copy of the 
publication for Atty. Snow to review.  Upon review, he stated that the ZBA could go forward with 
hearing the public hearing. 
Atty. Snow said that Kevin Shea and Judith Richland have a Purchase and Sale agreement for the 
property next door, owned by Siniscalco and Rybeck.  As he mentioned in an earlier presentation, the 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

problem with the variance of Siniscalco and Rybeck expires July 30, 2018 and is tied (he thinks 
accidentally) to a particular set of building plans.  Atty. Snow’s clients have different plans for this lot, all 
within zoning setbacks and dimensional requirements.  The client has entered into an agreement that is 
contingent upon the Zoning Board of Appeal’s approval of extending the variance.  If the delay in acting 
upon the variance is without the fault of the landowner and is the fault entirely (or nearly entirely) of 
third parties over which the landowner has no control, that delayed time period can be forgiven, and the 
variance extended.  The delay is only on the Siniscalco/Rybeck lot. 
Member Dundas stated that based upon what counsel said, it makes sense to him. 
Member Hultin has no problem with the extension of time to the variance. 
Member Todd had a question regarding what’s stated under Chapter 40 which says that they are not 
allowed to do a second extension.  Atty. Snow explained that it has been interpreted under the 
equitable eyes of the highest court in the Commonwealth to apply their equitable powers to allow relief 
under an equitable principle. 
Chair Perkel asked the attorney what he wanted the ZBA to do for them.  Atty. Snow believes they are 
entitled to the fourteen-month extension that was lost to the Planning Board but deferred to his client.  
Mr. Shea would also like the fourteen months.  During further discussion, Mr. Shea announced he would 
be applying to the Conservation Commission to build a sea wall.  If that were approved, he would then 
be changing the situs of the house by moving the deck.  Chair Perkel stated that if the Board is to 
equitably extend the variance, he does not think it would be appropriate for them to consider time for 
Mr. Shea to do something else.  Chair Perkel then asked what the minimum extension time would be 
(the response was unintelligible) and asked if the Board would consider an eight-month extension.  The 
Board was amenable to an eight-month extension.  Atty. Snow then pointed out that they still had the 
issue regarding the plan.  He asked if the Board would approve the plans Mr. Shea brought in with him 
and filed with his application.  Chair Perkel recalled there was some discussion about the height of one 
of the structures, and he wondered whether they should start from scratch.  Atty. Snow suggested 
perhaps holding another meeting before July 30th where public comment would be heard, regarding 
the new plan. 
Atty. Liz McNichols approached the Board.  She represents Barbara Rybeck and Joan Siniscalco.  She is 
here to support Mr. Shea’s application for the equitable tolling.  The owners want to see the agreement 
with Mr. Shea go through, and they support the application to amend the variance.  It is Atty. 
McNichols’ understanding that the footprint Mr. Shea is considering is within the footprint of the plans 
originally submitted by Rybeck/Sinscalco.  It complies with all zoning and setback requirements and he is 
not asking for any further relief.  She pointed out that the proposed plan fits within the footprint of the 
plan they already approved.  She would like to see the eight-month extension granted so they can 
exercise those rights granted by the Board. 
Judy Richland, Mr. Shea’s wife, had a question.  She stated that the Zoning Board did approve the 
building on 408 Shore Road.  They listened to the public and gave in to all their issues regarding building 
height.  The building that’s proposed at 402 Shore Road is exactly like the house on 408 Shore Rd.  It is 
no larger, in fact it is smaller.  She does not understand why the Zoning Board would not approve it. 
It was determined to continue this hearing to the July 23, 2018 meeting.  No vote was taken. 
 
Continuation – 2018-003/ZBA – Susan Lewis Solomont, by Atty. Sarah Turano-Flores, for property 
located at 37 Stephens Way (Atlas Sheet 58, Parcel 1, title reference:  Book 10986, Page 185).  
Applicant is seeking to overturn the Building Commissioner’s decision to not issue a permit and is also 
requesting a Special Permit and/or Variance, whichever the Board deems appropriate, w/ref. to Sec. 
10.2 and 50.1A of the Truro Zoning Bylaw to construct a single-family dwelling. 
As noted at beginning of meeting, the ZBA received an application to continue this to their next available 
meeting. 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

At this time, Member Thornley left the meeting. 
 
Continuation – 2018-002/ZBA – Timsneck LLC, by Atty. Benjamin Zehnder, for property located at 10 
Thornley Meadow Road (Atlas Sheet 53, Parcel 87, title reference:  Book 30529, Page 134).  Applicants 
are seeking a Special Permit and/or Variance, whichever the Board deems appropriate, w/ref to 
Sections 10.4 and 30.7B of the Truro Zoning Bylaw for additions to a pre-existing, non-conforming 
single-family dwelling. 
 
Atty. Benjamin Zehnder approached the Board.  His client has decided to redesign the project 
eliminating the swimming pool entirely, as the client and abutters were unable to come to an 
agreement.  The plan in front of the Board is identical in all respects to what they have seen before 
except the pool, the pool house, and the pool deck, have been removed from the plan.  What has been 
added is an at-grade paver sitting area.  They have also created notes in the site plan in order to protect 
the conservation restricted area.  They are going to install a four-foot high wooden snow fence, a geo-
textile silt fence, as well as signage stating, “Do Not Enter-Conservation Restriction Area”.  There is also 
a new landscaping plan which shows a significant amount of screening between this property and the 
neighbor to the north. 
Chair Perkel asked to see where the paved sitting area would be located.  Atty. Zehnder located the 
correct plan and pointed out the location. 
Member Areson had a question about the berm.  She believed there had been some discussion about 
the removal of that berm between the two properties.  Atty. Zehnder confirmed that the berm was 
indeed being removed.  Member Todd asked whether the height of the berm was being used as part of 
the grade calculations in determining the building height.  Atty. Zehnder stated that he didn’t believe it 
was but had not specifically asked the engineers that question.  Member Dundas asked what the 
Conservation Trust comments regarding the screening were based upon.  Atty. Zehnder believes the 
Conservation Trust is saying that the natural flora and fauna area is a sandy heath, so extensive vertical 
planting would change the nature of that environment. 
Fred Gaechter approached the Board.  He wished to pass out a report which the Conservation Trust 
commissioned from a consultant regarding the plantings, so they would have it for the record.  The gist 
of it is indeed the quantity of the plantings, and not necessarily the species.  There were 46 plantings 
proposed for the lot, which appeared excessive to the Trust.  The Trust would like it reduced significantly 
because those plantings could adversely impact the heathland.  They would also like to see some 
conditions added if the plan is to be approved, with regard to the plantings such as; all plantings would 
be hand dug (no heavy equipment on the property),  proper irrigation and replacement of any plants 
that fail, and other conditions that make it a viable plan.  He also passed out a diagram of the 
neighborhood as it’s important from a conservation perspective, to indicate what they are talking about.  
Mr. Gaechter proceeded to give a brief description of the properties in the neighborhood regarding 
locales of other conservation restrictions.  The Trust would like the Zoning Board to consider this 
application not only in the context the legality of the amplification and the physical construction, but 
also the neighborhood in which it will reside and the mind-set of the Trust, the neighbors, and the Town.  
Chair Perkel asked how one would enforce the replacement of plants that fail.  Mr. Gaechter stated that 
as a holder of the conservation restriction, which is approved by the Selectmen and the State, the Trust 
is required by State law to make an annual visit.  They are to request the property owner for access, the 
Trust goes out and conducts their inspection of the land and puts together a formal report that goes to 
the State to ensure the Trust is doing their stewardship under the terms of that conservation restriction.  
The Trust’s interest is only in the conservation restricted portion of the property.  Member Hultin 
pointed out that the wording for that condition would be quite specific, to which Mr. Gaechter stated 
that the Trust would be happy to put something together. 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Atty. David Reid approached the Board.  He represents John and Yvette Dubinski who are the immediate 
abutters to the North.  He stated that while certainly the pool, pool house, and pool deck are the biggest 
concerns of his clients, they are not the only concerns.  He pointed out that there was a lot of time spent 
discussing the fact that under the special permit criteria, in addition to the Board’s assessment of 
whether there is a detriment, they must also find (in order to grant a special permit) is what’s proposed 
is in harmony with the intent and purpose of the Zoning Bylaw.  The Comprehensive Plan says that the 
rural character of this neighborhood is a critical factor.  One of the largest threats to that character is the 
over-development of residential sites, particularly in prominent locations of hilltops, shorelines, and 
more visible locations like that.  This project is all of those.  With the removal of the pool and the pool 
house a lot of that is eliminated from his client’s perspective.  The other concern they have is the lower 
exercise area.  If you look at the North and West elevation, it’s a point sticking out from the house in the 
direction of his client’s property.  The room appears to be all glass on the two sides which point toward 
the abutter and, as discussed with Atty. Zehnder, an open patio.  His clients continue to have concerns 
that this very visible, very open, very bright glass area will continue to have an adverse effect on the 
area.  There is also the legitimate question as to whether the exercise level constitutes a third floor.  The 
addition that’s proposed has two sides fully exposed, above grade.  A third story is not permitted under 
the height regulations of the bylaw. 
Atty. Reid then went on to discuss when the lot was created (in 2007, not in 1993 as Atty. Zehnder 
stated).  It is a further subdivision of the original lot.  When created in 2007 it did not have 150 feet of 
frontage on any road.  The definition of lot frontage is that it must be measured along one road.  
Because the lot was created in 2007 without complying with the quantity requirement of frontage at 
that time, it is not a lawfully, pre-existing non-conforming lot.  Chair Perkel asked if that were true in 
light of the amendment of 40A Section 7.  Atty. Reid stated yes.  Chair Perkel continued, stating that the 
amendment mentioned a ten-year statute of limitations, and if you count from 2007 to 2018 you get to 
ten.  Atty. Reid countered that in March of this year the Appeals Court stated that it’s not the correct 
measurement.  In the case of a non-conformity by an ANR plan the statute of limitations does not begin 
to run until there is a severance of the two lots from common ownership.  That did not occur, in this 
case, until 2017.  The statute of limitations has not run out.  It does not qualify for a special permit, only 
a variance.  Member Todd stated in looking at the elevations he sees three stories, despite what the 
height regulations say. 
Chair Perkel stated that Atty. Reid was presenting a jurisdictional issue, in a sense.  Atty. Reid agreed.  
Chair Perkel said he was not prepared to put this to a vote by the ZBA until he gets the opinion of 
counsel.  The Board needs to have another meeting, and to have an opinion.  He also believes there will 
be a fair amount of conditions which will need to be reviewed before they vote on them.  Chair Perkel 
said the hearing would need to be continued with Atty. Zehnder’s approval.  Atty. Zehnder will consent 
to a continuance but would like to be heard on legal issues before the Board breaks. 
Frank Dubinksi, son of Yvette and John Dubinski, asked to say a few words.  His parents have lived at 
their current address for approximately 17 years.  He is the generation who will inherit the house.  He 
feels the important thing to note is the rural character of the town.  People come to Truro for a reason.  
He has looked at the plans.  He feels there are a lot of unanswered questions when it comes to the plan. 
Regan McCarthy approached the Board.  She asked what would be the total square footage of the 
structures and the square footage of the impervious land covering?  She stated that the largest square 
footage house in Truro is 9400 square feet.  She believes that this house will be larger than that, and 
that it would be helpful for the public to know the facts on that. 
Nathalie Ferrier approached the Board.  She asked who on the Board would like to be a neighbor of a 
house with nine bedrooms, nine bathrooms, and a large exercise room.  She is concerned with the 
approval of another large structure in Truro and would like the ZBA to consider what they are doing. 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Joanne Barkan approached the Board.  She understands that the Board will probably put conditions on 
the approval of the project if they vote to approve it.  She would like to know if there is a condition that 
can be put on that would make it quite secure that a pool would not be put in later. 
Joan Holt approached the Board.  She’d like to discuss the issue of detriment to the neighborhood.  She 
stated that everyone in South Truro understands that the reason Truro has these large “monstrosities” 
is because of the business of people deciding that it’s not a detriment to the neighborhood.  Even 
though there is no house size limit bylaw yet, there is a lot which the ZBA could rely on in saying that the 
expansion of the house will be a detriment to the neighborhood.  She’d like the Board to tell the 
neighbors why they feel it will not be a detriment.  The neighborhood was unable to prevent the house 
at the end of Cooper Road, nor the Klein house, from being built.  Most of the houses in the area are 
under 2000 square feet. 
Atty. Zehnder wished to respond.  He’s listened to people come up and say that the house is too big, the 
neighborhood is changing, etc. but that’s not the Zoning Board of Appeals job.  That is the Planning 
Board’s job.  The ZBA’s job is to look at the application and consider the facts.  In regard to whether the 
exercise room creates a third story, he read a portion of the bylaw which states “A basement, at its 
narrowest, may have its full height above ground on not more than one side and which may not have 
more than half of its height above mean ground on the second side.”.  Yes, there are two sides exposed, 
but one of those sides doesn’t have more than half of its height exposed.  It meets the basement 
definition. 
The statute of limitations case which Atty. Reid referenced is a different statute then the 10-year statute 
which Chair Perkel alluded to earlier, and the property does indeed qualify for a special permit. 
Atty. Zehnder stated that the Dubinski’s son came up and stated that this project will change the rural 
characteristics of the neighborhood however, the Dubinski’s property has a main dwelling of 2,652 
square feet, 2 bedrooms, a cottage with 2 bedrooms (689 square feet), and a potting shed, all on a lot of 
62,000 square feet.  They didn’t feel they were changing the rural character of the Town.  The applicant 
for 10 Thornley Meadow road is applying for a single-family dwelling with six (not 9 as previously stated) 
bedrooms.  The gross floor area of the first floor is 4,009 square feet.  The second floor has 2,976 square 
feet, and the finished basement has 1,167 square feet.  Total gross floor area is 8,152.   
 
Member Hultin made a motion to continue 2018-002/ZBA-Timsneck LLC, for property located at 10 
Thornley Meadow Road to the next regularly scheduled meeting (July 30th at 5:30pm). 
Member Areson seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Chair Perkel asked Atty. Zehnder to grant the Board a time extension.  Atty. Zehnder agreed to a time 
extension of 60 days after the meeting with the understanding that the Board could ask for more time if 
needed, and Atty. Zehnder would consider it at that time. 
 
Member Todd made a motion to adjourn at 7:30pm. 
Member Hultin seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Noelle L. Scoullar 


